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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS, REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
the Municlpal Legislature
Munlcipallty of Dorado
Dorado, Puefto Rico

we have audited the accompanying financial statements ofthe governmentar activities, thebusin_ess-type.activiues, each major fund, and the aggregate r;,i"iring irnd information ofthe Municipality of Dorado, puerto Rico lMunictpalfl1, i" of anO fo, ine y"ar ended June
1O., ?91O: which co ectively comprise the Mu;icip;iity,s O"ii. ii"un.Ll statements aslisted in the table of contents. These financiat st;tem;nts are ttre ieiponsinitity ot tneMunicipality's management. Our responsibility is to express an oplnion on tnese financiat
statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in theunited states of America and the standards appricatre to financia-iauoiti contained in tne
G.overnment Auditing Standards, issued by tfre Comptro er C"nerat oiit 

" 
United States.Those standards require that we pran ind perfoim the ,rot to ootuin reasonabre

assurance about whether the respective financial statements are free of materialmisstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supponing ttreamounts and disclosures in the respective financial statements. An audit also inciudes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that ou;audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial posjtion of the governmentai activities, the business typeactivities, each major fund, and the aggreg;te remaining tund iniormalon of theMunlclpality of Dorado, puerto Rlco, as otlunJ gO, ZOfO, an-o tne iespective changes infinancial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for tne ylar tnen enOeO inconformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United S'tiies ot lmerica.

ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 18, 2011, on our consideration of the Munlcipallty,s intemat control over financial
reponing and on our iests of its compliance witn certain provisions of Lws, regutations,contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of ihat report is todescribe the scope of our testing of internal control over financiai reportin! ano comptiance
and the.results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on tne int"-rnaf control overfinancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an iniegral part of an iuon periormeO inaccordance with Government Audjting Standards and sh6uld be considered in atsessing
the results of our audit.

L

Callc Parari #1686, ElCc.czat, San ruan, p.R.00926-3t41 _ Tet. (7g?) 777.80j4 far iJ87) 764-9371



Accounting principres generalry accepted in the united states of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3through 11 and 50 be presented to supprem;nt ttre oasic tinanciat statements. such
information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essentiat part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedu;es to the required
supplementary informalion in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepied inthe United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of man-agement about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information foi consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financiar statemenb. we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance_

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectlvely comprise the Municlpality of Dorado's financial statemenb, as a whole.
The.accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional anarysis as required by u.s. ffice of Management and Budget cireurai A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non- profil Organizations, ino is also not a
required part of the financia I statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate direc y to the underlying accounting and otner records used
to prepare the financiar statements- The information has been aubjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements a;d certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information direcfly to the underlying
accounting and other procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the united states of America. rn our opinion, the informar;n is fakry s;ted in a[ materiar

in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

%.e
A, PSC

San Juan, Puerto Rico
December 17,2010

Stamp No. 2575451ofthe puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
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@MMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RI@
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Munlcipality of Dorado (Muntclpatity), we offer readers of theN4unicipality's basic financial statements this narrative overview anJ analyiis ot tne rinanciat
activities of the Municipatity as of and for the fiscat y"", unO"J jriu 30, 2010. ThisManagement's Discussion and Anatysis (MD&A) inctudes comparutir" Oit", unO it has been
oesrgned accordingly with the following goals:

a) Assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues;b) Provide an overview ofthe Municipatity,s financiat activity;c) ldentil, changes in the l\4unicipatity,s financiat position (its abitity to address
the next and subsequent year challenges);d) ldentiry any materiat deviations from the financiat ptan (the approved budget,)
and;

e) ldentify individual fund issues or concerns.

Since the MD&A is designed to focus on the current year activities, resulting changes andcurrently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Municipaiity,s financial
statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Municipality net assets increased by $g,540,357. Such increase is due mainty to
increase in current and capital assets duringthe year.
ln-the fund financial statements, the governmental activities revenues decreased
$3,068,596 (or 9olo) and governmentat activities expenditures increased $1,449,485
(or 3%).
The General Fund (the primary operating fund) reflected, on a current financial
resource basis, a decrease of $1,579,325.
On a budgetary basis, actual expenditures exceeded actual revenues by g504,894.
The lvunicipality issued bonds and notes amounting to $3,452,000 and $41O,OOO,
respectively, to finance the acquisition of properties and construction and
improvement of municipal facilitjes and roads.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENTS DECUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONIINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

UsingThis Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of new financial statements with a change in the
focus from previous financial statements. The new focus is on both the lvlunicip;lity as a
whole (government-wide) and the major individuat funds. Both perspectives (gover;ment_
wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for
comparison (year to year or government to government) and enhance the Municipality,s
a ccou nta bility,

Government-Wide Flnancial Statements

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide users of the financial
statements with a broad overvie\.y of the Municipality,s flnances in a manner similar to
private€ector companies.

The Statement of Net Asset presents information on all of the lvlunicipality's assets and
liabilities, with the difference between both reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Municipality is improving or deteriorating

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the lvluniclpality,s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the Statement of Activities
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. The Statement of Activities is
focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities, which are provided by the
government's general tax and other revenues. This is intended to summarize and simplify
the user's analysis of cost of various governmental services.

Fund Financial Statements

The.Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipality,s most
significant fu nds, not the Municipality as a whole. The Municipality has only one kind offund
which is the governmental fund.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the Government Wide Financial Statements,

4



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALTTY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENTS DTSCUSSTON AND ANALYS|S _ (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

However, unlike the Government wide Financiar statements, Government Fund Financial
Statements, focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as we as on
balances of spendabre resources avairabre at the end of the fiscar year. such information is
useful in evaluatingthe Municipality's nearterm financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented ior governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government wide
financial statemenG. By doing so, users of the basic financial statements may better
understand the long-term impact of the Municipality,s near term financial decisions. Both of
the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

lnfrastructure Assets

Historically, a significant group of infrastructure assets such as roads, bridges, traffic
signals, underground pipes not associated with utilities, have not been recognized nor
depreciated in the accounting records of the Municipatity. GASB 34 requires thaasuch type
of assets be inventoried, valued ad reported under the governmental column of the
Government-Wide Statement. As of July I, 2OO2, the Municipality commenced the
prospective reporting of infrastructure assets, and reponed historical costs for such assets
in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007.

According to the requirements of GASB 34, the government must elect to either
(a)depreciate the aforementioned assets over their estimated useful life of (b) develop a
system of asset management design to maintain the service delivery to near perpetuity. lf
the government develops the asset management system, (the modifled approach) which
periodically (at least every three years), by category, measures and demonstrate its
maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the government may record
its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. ln this particular respect, the municipality has
elected the use of recognizing depreciation under the useful life method and it contemplates
to continue this treatment on said basis,

5



COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIW OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S DTSCUSSTON AND ANAtySts _ (coNTtNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITYAS A WHOLE

Net Assets

The Statement of Net Assets serves as an important indicator of the Municjpality,s financialposltion at the end of the fiscal year. ln the case of the Munlcipality of Dorado, primary
government assets exceeded totat tiabitities by $90,053,111 at the end of 2OlO, as
compared with $A7,572,754, as restated, which reftect an increase of $8,54O,3S7 over
previous fiscal. year. The following condensed Statement of Net Assets of the primary
Government 

. 
shows on a comparative basjs the most important components of the

$8.540,357 increase reflected in the Net Assets figure.
Corden.ed staterent ot Net A$et.

orrert and other ass€B

Orrent 6nd oltl€r liabIiries

lhvested In @pltal asets' ret of retated d6b(

s 3r,4@,779
746,417,318

5 3520,757 S

LtE,O75,29l
(7,O3O,97a)

7,342,074

311036

(18)*
T%

(61)%

{12)%

5,605,096

52,24a,877
L4,242,O52

5144t"242
(4,636,956)

407,6a5

57,453,973 66,Oa3,294 @,229,3211

25,554,A24
(5,664,4O4)

63,709,3c3
24,-t4u9a
(1O,*7,64n

6.457,788

13,156,274)
5,234.443

e\e6

$ 90,053,111 $ A1-512,754 $ a,540,357

150,000,000

100,000,000

50,000,000
e2010

.2009

6

Total Net Assets



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPATITYAS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Assets

The Municipality's net assets increased by $8,540,357. Approximately sixty one percent
(61%) of the lvunicipatity's total revenue came from taxes, white thirty five percent (35%)
resulted from grants and contributions, including federal aid. Charges ior Services provided
one percent (1%) of the total revenues. lnterest earnings iwo percent (2%) and
miscellaneous provided one percent (1%) of the total ,"r"nr"a.-Th" lVrniaipalaty,s expenses
cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for general government, public works
and health and welfare. As follow, is presented a comparalive anJlysis of government_wide
data. ln this analysis was determined the percentage change in revlnues ind expenditures
from prior year to current year.

Condoned Stat€Ent olAcuvtfles 2O1O 2OO9

CharEss tor ervices
Operating g.nb ard mntributions

CapiEl grants and col'ibsi,ons

Munl.ip6l licene tax

Municipal sales 6nd use Ex
Granb and @ntiblrtons not

resticted !o specific progams

lnterest and inwstrnom e6rnings

Orlture and recreadon

E@nomic devetopmenr

comnuniq devetopment

rnbrest on rong.term debt

Nst asbi bednningas restated

NetEsb, end ofyear

I 442742
7,44,457
1"811544

12,275"67

5,1981256

L944,Iil

3,072,446

1"651,704

532,31
477,395

$ 359,(9
6,1@277
4,653,a14

118.l:t,A51

3,939,0SS

2,O24,947

2,OLo,82

3,470,O40

778,916

3957,706
39,706,539

$ a3,303

7@,246

12,uz2@)

47!,2!6
L259,2!7

(8O,791)

j,061864

(1818336)
(246|5A5)

(3,4{O,3r1)

2U
!1%

$a%)

324

l4%)

u,854,132 @,452,4,71

5gh
(52Xt

132/,)

{8e,6)

t12X)

13,@6,341

l"893,369

1,060,648

5,549,667

2,094,A33

727,97
437,467

4.2*
1-279

1543,996

1360e,289

1451448
74,776,622

5,341\97r

441314

35,261
7L1,O27

1"761
3,@6

L742,075

(32,94€)

437,921

(13715,984)

207,696

1563,519

1N7,274)
(245,560)

2,497

tr"867)
(23&079)

4,540,357

41,512,754

1"122,@5

80,390,069

7,417,672

'1.122,*a

3!pl
(9396)

a4%

l5i2k)
(4096)

L42X
(6@,6)

(13%)

(32X)

661%

7%

10%

26,313,775 3&5a3,854 112,270,079)

$ 90,G53,111 $ A7,512,754 $ 8540,357
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COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIW OF DORADO

MANAGEMEN-rS DECUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Revenues 2010 a CharSes for services

i Operating grants and
contributions

. CapitalBrants and contributions

t Property taxes

a Other localtaxes

a Municipalsales and use tax

r Municipal license tax

r Gaants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs

B lnterest and investment earnings

r Miscellaneous

Expenses 2010
a General govemment

r Public safety

a Cultur€ and r€.r€ation

I Health and welfare

r Commu nity development

rlntereston long term debt

a



CIMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RIOO
MUI{ICIPALIW OF DORADO

MANAGEMENTS DECUSSION AND ANAL\4SIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPATITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near_term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the Municipality's financing requirements, ln particular, unreserved fund balance
may serve as a useful measure of a government,s net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscalyear.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the lvunicipality,s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund batances of $27,238,174, a decrease ot $4,799,O47 in comparison
with the prior year. There are reservations of fund balance amounting to $27,119,309. This
is the fund balance that it is not available for new spending because it has already been
committed 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior fiscal year (g911,556),
2) to pay debt service ($4,646,595), 3) to pay for capitat projects ($21,160,029) and 4) tot
other purposes ($4O1,129).

Within the governmental funds, it is included the general fund which is the chief operating
fund of the Municipality- As of June 30, 2O1O the general fund has an unreserved
undesignated fund balance of $118,865.

GENERAL FUND EUDGEIARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the N4unicipality Legislature revised the Municipality,s budget in
order to include increases in revenues that were identified during the course of the fiscal
year based on current developments that positively affected the Municipality,s finances.
lncreases in budgeted expenditures were also made since the law mandates a balanced
budget.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S AND DISCUSSION ANALYSIS - (CONNNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CapitalAssets

The Municjpality's investment in capitar assets for Governmentar Activities as of June 30,2010 amounts to $134,988,217 with an accumutated depreciation of $21,306,145,
Ieaving a net book value of $LL3,6g2,O72. For Business _ Type Activities investments in
capital assets as of June 30, 2O1O amounts to $3,971;648, with an accumutated
depreciation of $1,236,415, leaving a net book vatue of $2,735,i33. This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure and
construction in progress. lnfrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and
of value only to the state, such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems,
lighting systems, and similar items.

The total increase in the Municipality,s investment in capital assets in the current fiscal year
was about 7% in terms of net book value. Depreciation charges tor the year totaled
$2,O2t,297.

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through bond
issuances. The proceeds from bond issuances designated for construction actvaties are
committed in its entirety for such purposes and cannot be used for any other purposes. As
of June 30, 2010, the Municipatity has $L4,422,I9O of unexpended proceeds from bond
issuances that are committed to future construction activities in Governmental Activities and
$25,997 in BusinessType Activities.

Debt Admlnlstration

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general
obligation municipal bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, cre;it and
taxing power of each municipatity may be pledged.

The applicable law also requires that in order for a Municiparity to be abre to issue additional
general obligation bonds and notes such Municipality must have sufficient ,,payment
caPacity".

Act No. 64 provides that a municipality has sufficient "payment capacity" to incur additional
general obligation debt if the deposits in such municipality,s Redemption Fund and the
annual amounts collected with respect to such f\runicipality's Special Additional Tax (as
defined below), as projected by cDB, wi be sufficient to service to maturity the
Municipality's outstanding generat obligation debt and the additional proposed general
obligation debt ("Payment Capacity").

10



COMMONWEALII{ OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENTS AND DISCUSSION ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

CAPITAL ASSEIS AND DEBT ADMINISIRATION. (CONTINUED):

The Municiparity is required under appricabre raw to revy the speciar Additionar rax in such
amounts as shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal bonds and
notes. ln addition, principat of and jnterest on all g;neral obtig;tion municipat bonds and
notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation of the issuance of general obligation
bonds issued by the Muntcipality constitute a first tien on the Municiiatity,s Basic Tax
revenues. Accordingry, the Municiparity's Basic Tax revenues wourd be avairabre to make
debt service payments on general obligation

Municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Speciat Additionat Tax tevied by the
Municip-ality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality,s Redemption Fund, are
not sufficient to cover such debt service. lt has never been nece;sary to apply Basic Taxes
to pay debt service on general obligation debt ofthe Municipality.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXI YEARS BUDGEIS AND RATES

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal grants to
carry out the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have been
very predictable wlth increases of approximately five percent. Federal grant revenues may
very if new grants are available but the revenue also is very predictable. Those factors were
considered when preparing Municipality,s budget for the fiscal year 2OLO_2OLL.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayer,
customers, investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality,s finan;es
and to demonstrate the Municipality's accountability. lfyou have questions aboutthe report
or need additional financial information, contact the lvlunicipality's chief Financial officer at
PO Box 588, Dorado, Puerto Rico 0064m588, Tetephone OA7) 7,GL23O.

LT



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Munlclpallty of Dorado
Statement of Net Assets

June 30,2010

c.shand6hequ,Elenb
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The notes to the nnanciat statements are an integEt pan of this statenents, 72



Commonwealth ol Prrerto Rtco
Munlclpallty of Dorado
Statement of Activftles

For the Year Ended June 30,2O1O

The notes to the financiat statements are an integEt part of this statement. 13



Commonwaalth of Pu.no Rl6
Munlclpartty ot Dorado

Balance Sh€sr
Governmantat Flnds

,uns30,2010
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Commonweatth of puerto Rtco

Muntdpattry ot Dorado
Stat.ment ol Fev.nues, Ere€ndhurcs and Charges tn Fund BatanceE

Governmentat Fun(ls

Forthe Year End€d June 30,2010
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Commonwealth of puerto Rico
Munlclpality ot Dorado

Reconciliation oI the EalanceSheet - Governmental Funds
to the Statement of l{et Assets

Forthe Year Ended June 30,2O1O

Totll Fsnd Bd.nc - covemmentat Funtb 9 27,238,714

Amounts .eported for Governmentat Adivities in the Staremenr ot Ner Arse,r4

capilal a$ets used in govemmentEt activitiG a,e not nnanciat resourcB and uerefoE,
6E not eporred in rhe funds_ tn the clront Deriod, these Emoonts are:

Non depreciable €phat asseG
Dep.eciable capital asets
Accu m u tated dep reciau on

$ 423a0,015
52,608,202

(21,306,145)

Tota, @pit tasseB 113,€f,2,072

Some ofthe Municipatit/s Mnues{iltbe co[ected afteryerend but are noravaitabte
s@n enough to pay ior rhe curent p€riod,s expe.dnure and rhereiore, a,e defered in

Municip€t Revenue Coletion Center 5O,OOO

Accounts payEble accumulated according lo rhe acctuar basis ofaeoun!ng, tnrhe curehl
p€.iod th@ accounts payabte amount to: pO1,22Al

Some liabilitie are not due and payabte in the curent period sndrherefo€, are not
Eported in the funds. Th@ tiabititje consjs:t of:

GeneBl bondsard not6 palabte

Propeo tares debt Lak 146
Pope.ty taxes debt - Law 42
Codpensted absenc6

46,013,000

141,591
261,440
237,560

2,974.919
150,000
195,958

7,574,762

Toiial long-term tiabitities (51,553,230)

Accru€d inreret payaue d€ not du6 dd payabte in the cun€d p€nod dd ih6r6ior€,
4€ not foporied in the lun(,s. Thoso inter€st payabtB sount 1o: {652,929)

Total Net aetl of govemmentat.ctMti6 $ a7.a62359

The noles to lhe linancial siatements are an integratpart ofthis siatement. 16



Commonwealth ot puefto Rico
Municlpallty ot Dorado

Reconclllation ofthe Statement ot Revenues,
Expendllures, and Changes in Fund Balancesof

Governmental Fundsto the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30.2010

Net Clrange ln Fund aabn@ - ror.t Goveh€ at F{n.ts

Amounts rcponed for governmentat adiviti6 in fie si6tement ol activitie are dtfturent bee6e:

Rwenues in the Stateffent of Activtties that do not provide curent financiat resources are not reported as rew.u6 in the
funds.Ihefollowingamount EpresenB the change in this revenue fiom prior yEr.

OonatoN ot C.phal Asets from outiide panbs, do not provide cureni fnandat resourB jn covernmental Funds, but the
tansctio. must be reiected in the Gove.nment-wde statemed of Net Asets basd or th€ fair vatue of the donated

Governmental Funds repon €phat ouflaF as e&endiru.6. H@eer, in rhe cdemment-Wde SrEtemem of Activiu6 and
changes in Net alsers, the cct ol the asets is al@ted over thek estimsted usefut tiE €s deprecl.tion expense. This
ls the amount of c€piral a*ts recorded in the cunent pe.iod.

oepreciatjon apen* M capital a$ets is reponed in lne Governhe.t wide $arBments of Activhies and change in Ner
Assets. bul they do not Gqui.e the use of cu(ent tinanclat resourcE. Theretore, Dep@ciation expense ts not reponed 6
exp€nditurB in Gdemmental Funds Fha ncia I statemenrs_

lnte.6t Expe.* chanap is reponed In the Gove.nmenlwide statement of Activtlies and change in Na As6, but not
.equne lhe 6e ol cured li.a.ciat resources. The.etoE, tnterest qrEnse change is no1 repotud as exDendnures in
Governmental Funds Flmnciat S(atements.

A.@u.is payabte change is Eponed in $e covenmentwde $atement of Adivtties and Ch.nge in Net Asets, but not
reponed as in lhe Gover.ment l Funds, bo€ue they do not requne the use of cure^t financiat .sur6. This is the
afrount Eported in the cu(e.t period.

Long te,m debt isua.c6 are repolcd in the Govemmeni Wide Sratemst of Net Asets, but nol equne the @ ot curEnl
financiall@urc6. TheeloE, Long term debt,sua.c6 are not reponed as erpendnuE in Govehherlat Funds Financial

Longte.m debts patmenr6 aE reported 6s exlendhures in the covemmentat Funds Financial Si6lements which requke te
us€ of curEnt fnanci.l resoure. TherefoE Long term debr paymenrs are noi reported as expendftlB in rhe Gow.nment,
wde Stateme.t ot Activitt6 and Change in Net Assets_

aonds poeeds prcvide curem fna.cial re$ur.6 to Covemmental Funds, but tsutngdebt incrBse tonererm tjablitie in
the Gwemmentwde statment of Net Asets. Repayment of bond pnncipat is an erp.ndhu€ in G@mmentd Funds, but
tne Epatment Edue lonE -tem liabilitiB in the Government-Wide Sratement of Ner Asets. ThG is rhe amount bry which
the debt *ryice p ncipal paymenls exced tie debt ptoceeds

(1Oa,5OO)

44,567

9,36:1,309

t2,021,291)

164,305

6,595,143

(534,723)

946,431.

(1045 000)

Chango lh N€t As+ts ol coErnmentat Acuttres 4,609,594

The notes to the iinancial statements ae an integ.al p.n of thts $aremen! L7



Commonwealth ol Puefto Rico

Munlclpallty ot Oorado

Statement of Not Assets

Propdetary Fund-Business Type Activlty{nterpris€ Fund

Year Ended June 30,2010

BuslnessType

Actlvltly
Enterprise

Assets

Curent Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agent

Total current assets

Noncurent Assets:

Capital Ass€ts:

Property, and equipment:

Building

Accumulated depreciation

Tota l nonrunent assets

Totalassets

Llabllltles:

Curent Llabllltles:

Revenue Fu nd-Banco Santander Loan

lnterest Payable-Banco Santander Loan

Total current liabilities

Totalliabilities

Net Assets

lnvested in Capital Assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Assdts

L76,236
25,997

202,233

344,790
3,542,454

17,236,4a5)

2,735,233

2,937,466

695,647
51,567

747,274

7 47,274

1,988,019
202,233

The notes to the financlalstatements are an integral part ofthis staternent.

2,790,252
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Municipality of Dorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Asset3

Proprietary Fund-Business Type Actlylty-Enterprlse Fund

Year Ended June,30, 2O1O

Business - Type
Activities

Enterp.ise

$ 218,546

218,546

Operatlng rcvanues:

Charges for services

Total operaling revenues

Operuiing expenses:

Operalions and mainlenance

Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenditures

146,645

89,571

Operating income (Loss)

Non-operaiing revenues (6xp€naes):

lnterest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

lncome (loss) before transfers

Change in Nel Assets

Total net assets-beginning

Total net assels-ending

2%,216

117,670)

(s1,s67)

(51,567)

(69,237)

(69,237)

2,259,449

$ 2,190,252

The notes to the financial statements are an integ€l pan ofthis statement, 19



Commonwealth of Pueato Rico

Municipality of Dorado

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fun6Business Type Activity-Enterprise Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2010

Cash Flows fiom Ooerating Activitles:

Receipts f rom Customers

Payment to Suppliels
lnterest paid

Net Cash Provldod (Us6d) by Operating Actiylties

C6sh Flows fiom Capitaland Related Flna nclnE Actlvltles:

Repayment of Revenue Bond

Net Cash Provided (lJsed) ln Capltaland Related FlnanclngActlvltles

Net Oecrease ln Cash and Cash wlth FiscalAgent, Restrlcted

Cash and Cash with Fiscal Agent at Beginnlng of Perlod, Restrlcted

Cash and Cash with FiscalAEient at End of Pedod, Restrlcted

Reconclliation of Ooeratine lncome to Net Cash Provided (used) bv

Ooerating Activltles:

OperatinEl lncome (Loss)

$ 218,546
(146.645)

(51,567)

20,334

i.266,256)

(266,2s6)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating lncome to Nd Cash Used by Operating Activities:

Depreciation

Accrued lnterest

Total AdJustments

Net Cash Provided (used) by Operatlng Activitias

Noncash lnvesting, capftal and financlng actlvitles:

$ 202,233

$ i17,670)

89,571
(51,567)

38,004

(245,922j

448,155

$ 20,334

The notes to the financialsiatements are an integral part ofthis statement. 20



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Munlcipality of Dorado (the Nlunicipality) was founded on the year 7842. fhe
Municipality's governmental system consists of an executive and legislature body. lt is
governed by a Mayor and a fourteen member Municipal Legislature who are elected for a
four-year term-

The Municipality provides public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and
welfare, community development, education, and other miscellaneous services.

The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the l\4unicipality conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the lJnited States of America ("USGMP") as
applicable to governmental units.

ln June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
34, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's and Discussion and Analysis for State
and Local Governments." This Statement, known as the Reponing Model, provides for the
most significant change in financial reporting for state and local governments in over 20
years and affects the way the Municipality prepares and presents flnancial information. The
Statement was adopted as of July 1, 2002. ln addition to this Statement, GASB Statement
No. 37, "Basic Financial Statements and l\4anagement's Discussion and Analysis for State
and Local Governments: Omnibus" and GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial
Statement Note Disclosures" have been adopted and are reflected in these flnancial
statements.

As part of this Statement, there is a new reporting requirement regarding the capitalization
of local government infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.). This requirement
permits an optional four-year delay for implementation to fiscal year 2007. The lMunicipality
implemented the capitalization of infrastructure since July 1, 2006.

2L



COMMONWEALT}I OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A. Component Unlts

ln evaluating how to define the lvlunicipality for financial reporting purposes, management
has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential
component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of Statement
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, of the GASB, as amended by the GASB Statement
No. 39, "Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component UniG, The basic, but
not the only criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is if
elected officials of a primary government are financially accountable for the entity.
Financial accountability exists if the primary governmental appoints a voting majority of the
entity's governing body, and if either one of the following conditions exist the primary
government can impose its will on the other entity or the potential exists for the other entity
to (1) provide specific financial benefits to or (2) impose speciflc financial burdens on the
primary government. A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is if
the nature and significance of the relationship between the entity and a primary
government are such that to exclude the entity from the financial reporting entity would
render the financial statemenG misleading or incomplete. Based on the above criteria the
lMunicipality does not have component units to include within its reporting entity.

B. covernment wide and fund financial statements

Financial information of the lvlunicipality is presented in this report as follow:

1. Management's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and
provides an analytical overview of the Municipality's financial activities.

2. The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the
statement of activlties) report information on all the activities of the Municipality and its
component units, if any. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from businesstyped activities,
if any, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. lnterfund
activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the duplicating effect on
assets and liabilities within the governmental activities.

22



COMMONWEALI}I OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STAIEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StGNtFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment is offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that
are charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment, Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

3. Fund financial statemenG focus on information about the Municipality's major
governmental funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements. The Municipality reports the following major
governmental funds;

Ceneral Fund- is the accounting entity in which all governmental activity, except that
which is required to be accounted for in another fund, is accounted for. lts revenues
consist mainly of taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenue, charges for
services and other.

Speclal Revenue Fund - State & Local Gtan6- is the accounting entity in which
revenues derived from local funds and state grants, is accounted for, The uses and
limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by lVunicipality ordinances or state
statutes.

Capltal Prclects Fund - State and Local Crants - is the accounting entity in which
revenues derived from local funds, state or other restricted revenue sources related to
capital projects, is accounted for. The uses and limitations of each capital project fund
are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Capltal PrcJects Fund - Federal Grants - is the accounting entity in which revenues
derived from federal grants sources related to capital projects, is accounted for. The
uses and limitations of each capital project fund are specified by Municipality ordinances
orfederal and state statutes.

DeDt Seryice Fuad - is the accounting entity used to account for the resources
accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-term general
obligation bonds of governmental funds.

4. Proprietary Fund Types focus on report any activities for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods or services. The Municipality reports the following proprietary
fund:

Enterprlse Fund - The Enterprise Fund, which was established in June 1996, is used to
account for operations (1)that are financed and operated in a similar manner as private
business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs ( expenses,
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis, are flnanced or recovered primary through uses, charges; or (2) where
the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred, andlor net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public
policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The enterprise fund of the Municipality includes land and buildings known as
'Commercial Pavilion Rafaet Hern6ndez Cot6n,, tocated in 349 M6ndez Vigo Street at
Dorado, Puerto Rico. The main source of income comes from rent received from spaces
rented with formal contracts.

5. The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user,s
understanding of the basic flnancial statements.

6. Required supplementary information such as the budgetary comparison schedule-
general fund and other types of data required by GASB.

7. Notes to the budgetary comparison schedulegeneral fund.

C. Financial reporting presentation

The accounts of the Municipality arc otganized on the basis of funds, each if which is
considered a separate accounting entity, The operations of each fund are accounted for
with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabiljties, fund
equity, revenues, and expenditures.

The Municipality has established the following fund categories, fund types, account groups
and discreet presentation of enterprise fund:

Governmental Fund Tvoes:

General Fund- ls the operating fund of the Municipality. lt is used to account for all
governmental activity, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Fund - Local and State Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to
account for revenues derived from local funds, state grants or other restricted revenue
sources. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by
Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Special Revenue Fund - SecUon 8 - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for
revenues derived from section 8 choice voucher program. The uses and limitations of each
special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.
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COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASTC FtNANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT|NUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Special Revenue Fund - Head Start - ls the accounting entity in which revenues derived
from the federal agency are used to provide comprehensive health, educational, nutritional,
social, and other developmental services primarily to economically disadvantaged
preschool children (ages 3 to 5) and infants and toddler (birth through age 3) so that the
children will attain school readiness.

Capital Projects Funds - Local and State Grants - Capital pmject Funds are used to
account for financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of maior cap'rtal
facilities.

Capltal Piojects Funds - Federal Glants - Capital project Funds are used to account for
financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

Debt Servlce Funds Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related
costs.

Speclal Revenue Fund - Other Federal Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to
account for revenues derived from federal grants. The uses and limitations of each special
revenue fund are specified by lVunicipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Proorietarv Fund Tvoes

Entelprise Fund - The enterprise fund statements consist of Statement of Net Assets,
Statement of Activities, and Statement of Cash Flows. This fund accounts for exchange like
transactions, Iike private enterprise and its operations are jntended to be self supporting
through charges to users. These statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus, which concentrates on an entity orfund's net assets.

All transactions and events that affect the total economic resources (net assets) during the
period are reported. The statements are reported on the full accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized in the period earned and expenses recognized in the period in
which the associated liability is incurred.

D, Measurement focus, basis of accountlng and financial presentatlon

Except for budgetary purposes, the basis of accounting used by the l\4unicipality conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("USGMP") as
applicableto governmental units. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied
to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they
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@MMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STAIEMENTS (CONNNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. ORGANIZAT|ON AND SUMMARY OF StcNTF|CANT ACCOUNnNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The Nlunicipality has elected not to apply all Statements and lnterpretations issued by the
Financial Accounting Standard Board after November 30, 1989, in accordance with GASB
Statement No.20.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available, Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within the current period or soon
enough thereafter. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures when payment is due.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds from issuance of general long-term debt reported as other financing sources.
Property taxes, other taxes, licenses, rent, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when the government receives cash.

Property taxes, other taxes, licenses, rent, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when the government receives cash.

Privat+sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issue prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extentthat
those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent privatesector
guidance for their business.type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The Municipality has elected not to follow subsequent privatesector guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants, and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments, if any. lnternally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise,
general revenues include all taxes-
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPATIIY OF DORADO

NOIES TO BASTC F|NANC|AL SIAIEMENTS (COi{ITNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StGNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLTC|ES (CONTTNUED)

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
government's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they
are needed.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
duringthe reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

E. Assets, liabilities and net assets

1. Cash, cash equivalents, and cash with fiscal agent- The Municipality's cash and cash
equivalenG are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund represents special additional property tax
collections retained by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted for the
payment of the Municipality's debt service, as established by law. Aiso, cash with fiscal
agent consists of unused proceeds of bonds and notes issued for the acquisition of
equipment and construction of major capital improvements.

Cash with fiscal agent is shown in the Enterprise Fund which is held by the Government
Development Bank and its use is limited to the expenditures associated with
"Commercial Pavilion of Dorado Rafael Hernendez Col6n".

2. Receivables and payables. Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred
to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
"advances tolrom other funds' (i.e., the non{urrent portion of interfund loans). All

other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due tofrom other funds."

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, it any, ate
offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate
that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available flnancial
resources.

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which
are determined, based upon past collection experience and current economic
conditions. lntergovernmental receivable in the general fund represents the balance
due from the l\4unicipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) resulting from the final
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COMMONWEALIII OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASTC FtNANC|AL STATEMENIS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNlFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONnNUED)

settlement; lntergovernmental receivables in the debt service fund represent the
amounts due from the CRIM resulting from the excess of current year property tax
collections over current year advances. lntergovernmental receivable in the c;pital
projects fund and in other governmental funds represent amounts owed to the
lvlunicipality for reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded
programs or state funded programs.

3, lnventories- lnventories in the general fund is recorded as expenditure and,
consequently, the inventory is not recorded in the statement of net assets.

4. Capital assets. Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure
asseG (e.9., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the
governmental activities column in the governmentalwide financial statements. The
Municipality defines capital asset as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$25 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed.

Capital assets of the Municipality are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Caoltalization thr€shold

$1
$1
$1
$1

$25
$25

5. Long-term obligatlons- The liabilities reponed in the government-wide financial
statements include to general and special obligation bonds and notes, and other long_
term liabilities, such as vacation, sick leave, litigation, long-term liabilities to other
governmental entities.

ln the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances
cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other

Desc otion

Buildings and site improvements
lnfrastructure

Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment

Usetul Llfe

40 years
40 years
10 yea6
5 years
5 years

3 to 5 yeals
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COMMONWEAITH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONNNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. ORGANIZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtcANT ACCOUNnNG pOLtCtES (COiTTtNUED)

financing sources, whire bond issuance costs, whether or not withherd from the actuar
debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.

6. Compensated absences- Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days
per month up to a maximum of 60 days. Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fully
vested to the employees from the flrst day of work. All vacation pay it is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide financial statements.

Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum of
90 days. Upon retirement, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated and
unpaid sick leave at the current rate, if the employee has at least 10 years of service
with the Municipality. All sick leave pay and salary related benefiG are accrued when
incurred in the governmentalwide financial statements when the employee meets such
criteria.

7. Claims and judgmente The estimated amount of the liabitity for ctaims and judgments,
which is due on demand, such as from adjudicated or setfled claims, is recorded in the
generalfund when the liability is incurred.

8, Reservations of fund balance Reservations of fund balance in the fund financial
statements represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for specific
future use or are not appropriated for expenditure, The Municipality has the following
reservations of fund balance:

a. Capltal Projects Represent the reservation of amounts to be used for future
expenditures for capital projects under contracts and other commitments. These
committed amounts generally will become liabilities in future periods as the
projects are completed.

b, Encumbrcnces' Represent future expenditures under purchase orders, contracts
and other commitments. These committed amounts generally will become
liabilities in future periods as the goods or services are received.

c. Otrer Purposes- Represents net assets available for specific use and/ot legally
segregated for other speciflc future use.

d. Debt Serylce Fund Represents net assets available to finance future debt service
payments.

9. Net Assets - ln the government-wide statements, net assets are segregated into three
categories;

a. lnvested in capital aisets, net of related debt: Consist of capital asset balances net
of accumulated depreciation and outstanding balances of any bonds, notes and
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other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. This category should not include cash that js
restricted to capital assets acquisition or construction (unspent bond proceeds)
and any unamortized debt issue costs.

b. Restricted net assets; Represent net assets that are subject to restrictions beyond
the Municipal's control. These include restrictions that are externally imposea 1ny
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments) or
restrictions imposed by the law through constitutional provisions or enabiing
legislation (including enabting legistation passed by the government itself).

c. Unrestricted net assets: Represent net assets that do not meet the definition of net
assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt or restricted. Unrestricted
assets are often designated to indicate that management does not consider them
to be available for general operations. These types of constraints are internal and
management can remove or modify them. Designations are not reported on the
face statement of net assets,

lo.Accounting for Penslon Cost$ For the purpose of applying the requirements of GASB
Statements No. 27, Accountingfor pensions by State and Local Govemment Employers
(GASB No. 27), the state government of the Commonweatth of puerto Ric; is
considered to be the sponsor of the Employee,s Retirement System of the Government
of Puerto Rico and its tnstrumentatities (ERS) and System 2OOO, a multi-emptoyer cost_
sharing defined benefit plan and a hybrid defined contribution plan, respectively, in
which the employees of the Municipality participate. The Municipality is considered a
participant and not a sponsor, of these retirement systems since the majority ofthe
participants in the aforementioned pension trust funds are employees of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Accordingly, no portion of the net pension obligation
(NPO) related to ERS has been a ocated to the Municipatity in the accompanying basic
financial statements, The basic financial statements of the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico report the total amount of the net pension obligation of ERS, including any amount
that may correspond to the Municipatity.

ll,lnterfund and intra€ntity transactions The Municipality has the following types of
transactions amongfunds:

a. Operating Transfer$ Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as
"Operating transfer-in" by the recipient fund and as ,.Operating transfers_out, by the
disbursing fund.
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b. lntra-Entity Transactions- Transfers between the funds of the primary government
are reported as interfund transfers with receivables and payables presented as
amounts due to and due from other funds.

12.Risk financing- The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover casualty, theft,
tort claims and other losses. lnsurance policies are negotiated by the puerto Rico
Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all the N4uniclpalities of puerto
Rico.

Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality and deducted from the gross property
tax collections by the CRIM for the year ended June 30, 2O1O amounted to $330,26r.
The current insurance policies have not been cancelled or terminated. The CRllvl also
deducted $448,731 for workers compensation insurance covering all municipal
employees.

13.Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance-
total governmental funds and net assetlgovernmental activities as reported in the
government-wide statement of net assets. The two elements of that reconciliation
explains that 'long term liabilities, including compensated absences, bonds and notes
payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in
the funds.", and that "capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. The details of this
reconciliation are as follows:

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Municipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in puerto Rico
and Government Development Bank for pueno Rico (GDB). proceeds from bonds and funds
related to certain grant awards are required by law to be held with GDB.

The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB No. 4O), Deposft
and lnvestment Risk Disclosure, an Amendment to GASB Statemert No. 3. This statement
requires that state and local governments disclose essential risk information about deposits
and investments. The disclosure requirements cover four main areas: (1) credit risk, (2)
interest rate risk, (3) custodial credit risk, (4)foreign exchange exposure.

credlt risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations, ln compliance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the
Munlcipality has adopted, as it's custodial and credit risk policy, the Statement of tnvestment
Guidelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of puefto Rico. Accordingly the
Municipality invests onty in obligations of the Commonwealth, obtigations of the United Stabs
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of America, c€rtificates of deposits, commercial paper, bankers, acceptances, or in pools ofobligations of the municipatities of puerto Rico, ;hich are managJLicDB. According to theaforementioned investment guidetines, the lvtunicipatity d";; ili invest in marketabtesecurities or any types of investments for which c;edil risk exposure may be significant.Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that the risk retated to any possible
loss relaled to defaurts by commerciar banks on the uunicipariivi aepoiits is considered rowat June 30, 2010.

lnterest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments willadversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its exposure todeclines in fair values by: (1) not including debt investments in its investment pomorio at June30,2o7o' (2) rimiting the weighted aveEge maturity of its investments to three months orless, and (3) keeping most of its bank Oiposits tn interests bea;i;t accounts generating
interests at prevaiting market rates. At June 30,2OtO, tne fflunici[af ity,s inveitmenS iicertificates of deposits are recorded at cost, which approxlmates theiiiair value. Therefore,the Municipality's management has concruded that ai June 30, 2010, the interest rate riskassociated with the Municipality,s cash and cash equivalents is consideieo tow.

Custodial credit risk - ln the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bankfailure, the r4uniciparity's deposits may not be recovered. pursuant to the staterrent oflnvestment Guiderines for the Government of the commonweanh of puetto Rico rhe barances
deposited in commercial banks by the Municipatity are insured bt the Federal Deposit
lnsurance Corporation (FDtC) generally up to a maximum of $250,O0O [er depositor.

Custodial. credit sk -ln addition, public funds deposited in commerciat banks by theMuniciparity are fufly securities predged as colaterar are herd, in the Municiparity's na;e, bythe agents of the Commonwealth,s Secretary of Treasury. Deposits with GDB are uninsured
and uncorraterarized. However, no rosses rerated to defaurts by GDB on deposit transactions
have been incurred by the Municipality through June 30, 2O10. Ther;fore, the Municipatity,s
management has concluded that at June 30, 2O1O the custodial credit risk associated with
the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low.
Forelgn exchange risk - The risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the valueof an .investment or a deposit. According to the afore;entioned investment guidelines, the
Municipality is prevented from investing in foreign securities or any othe;types of investments
in which foreign exchange risk exposure may be significant. nccorOingfy, management hasconcruded that the foreign exchange risk rerated to the Municiparity's dliosits is considered
low at June 30,2010.
Under Commonwealth of puerto Rico statutes public funds deposited in commercial banksmust be fully collateralized for the amount deposited in excess of federal depositoryinsurance. All securities pledged as collateral are held by the Secretary of the Treasury oi
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Puerto Rico. ln addition, the Municipality maintains deposits with the GovernmentDevelopment Bank for puerto Rico (cDB).

The Municipatity's bank batances in commerciat banks of g2,851,249, $307,890,$2,692,673, and $4,543,460 in the generat iunO, capili proiectJJ'und _ tocat and stategranG, and capital projects fund - federal grants, respectively, were fully collateralized at
June- 3-0, 2010. tn the other governmentat fu;ds there wer" o"po"iti ,itf, commerciat banksof $1,083,882 that were fulty collateratized.

The. deposits at cDB of $L4,422,19O that is restricted principally for capitat projects in thecapitar project fund - rocar and state grant, $26,148 resricted for operationar expenditures inthe general fund and the $4,575,593 in the debt service funJ are unsecured anduncollateralized, as no collateral is required to be carried by governmentat banks.

3. RECEIVABLES

A. Munlclpal license tax-

The Municiparity imposes a municipal license tax on all businesses that operate within theMuniciparity, which are not totafly or partialy exempt from the tax fuiiuant to tne tnoustriat
lncentives Acts ofthe commonwearth of puerto Rico. This is a serf-assessed tax based on the
busjness volume in gross sales as shown in the tax return that is duaon Aprit 24 of each year.
Entities with sales volume of $1,OOO,OOO or more must include audited financial statements
together with the tax return. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the tax rates were
as follows:

1. Financial business 1.50% of gross revenues

2. Other organizations- O.5O% of gross revenues

This tax is due in two equal installments on July l and January 1 of each fiscal year. A
discount of 57o is alowed when fu, payment is mide on or before Aprir 15. Municipai ricense
tax receivable of $1,191 represents filed municipal license tax retuins that were unco ected
as ofJune 30, 2010, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next fiscal year are
recorded as deferred revenues.

B. lnterg,overnmental Recelvabtes - lntergovernmental receivable in the general fund
represents the balance due from the lvlunicipal Revenue Collection Center lohlM; at June30, 2010, as described in Note 9. Following is a detait of the intergove;nmental
receivable:
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covemmental En tv

fulunicipat RevenueCollection Center("CR V")

Total

Govemmental Entitv

l\runicipal Revenue Cottection Center (,CRlM")

Total

lntergovernmental receivable in debt service fund represents property tax receivable at
June 30, 2010. Following is a detail ofthe intergovernmental receivable:

Amount

$71.002

sz!-oo2

Federal grants recelvabtes- Federal crant receivable in other governmental funds
represents expenditures incurred not yet reimbursed by federal government or the pass_
through grantor. Following is a detail ofthe intergovernmental recJivable:

Amount

$ 321.653

$12!-65i1

c_

Progam Descdotlon

Hazard Mitigation Program
Child Care Food Program
Head Start Program
Community Development Block crants/ State,s program
Community Development Btock cranV State s program ARRA
Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re.housing program
EmeEency Management Performance Grant-Homeland Security
Energy Ef{iciency and Conservation Block Grant
Others

Total

Amount

$ 2a,000
9,227

37,O47
43,267
24,500
22,550
20,367
8,475

32.707

$225528

D. Othet Recelvable- Other receivable of $81,191 in the general fund represents accounts
receivable at June 30, 2010, related to construction excise tax $44,979, fines $21,309
and rent of $14,994.
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4. INTERFUNDTRANSACNONS

lnterfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2010, and interfund transfers during the
fiscal year ended atJune 30, 2010, are summarized as follows:

a, Due from/to other fund:

Recelvable Fund Pavablo Fufid Purcose

Payroll and related accruals
paid and not reimbursed

Reimbursable expenditures

IMatching Contdbution

General Fund

GeneralFLrnd

Amount

$ 802,a16

147,653

2.000

$1521169

Other Governmental Funds,
Federal Programs

CaDital Projects Fund-State
& Local Funds

b.

Other Governmental General Fund
Funds

Tolal

Transfer inlout to other fund

Thnsfer out
GeneralFund

General Fund

GeneralFund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Transter ln

Other Governmental Fund

Other Governmental Fund

Debt Seruice Fund

Capital Projects Fund- Federat
Grants

Capital Projects Fund - State
and Local Grants

Othels Govemmental Funds

Purco6e

Matching Contdbution

Match ing Contribution

Debt retirement

Transfer of funds for speciat
purpose

Transfer of funds fol special
purpose

Transfer of tunds for special
purpose

Expenditure reclassifi cation
to the conect fund

Expenditure rcclassification
to lhe correct fund

Transfer of funds for special
purpose

Transfer of funds for special
purpose

Transfer of funds for special
purpose

Amount

$ 33,700

130,O00

110,909

3,277

100,000

2,587

35,322

207,397

105,845

aa,27a

253.458

sL000ler

Other Govemmental GeneralFund
Funds

Other Governmental Other Governmental Funds
Funds

Capital Projects GeneralFund
Fund- State and
LocalGrants

CapitalProjects ceneralFund
Fund- Federal
Grants

Other Governmental Debt SeNice
Funds

Total
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5, CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of one year or more from the time of
acquisition b] the Munlcipatity and a cost of $25 or more, are primarily funded through the
issuance of long-term bonds and loans. A summary of capital assets a;d changes occurring
in.2O1O, including those changes pursuant to the imptementation of GASB Stat;ent No. 34;
follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation:

Govemme6tal Acflvtfles:

Capital assdt, not belng depreclated:

Construction in progress

Total caplial assets not betnEl
depreclated

Capltal assets, betnEl deprectated:

Euildings
BuildinEF improvements
lnfrastructure
lnfrastructure improvements
Equipment
Fumishing

C,omputers

Total capltal assets b6in€i depr€ciated

Less accumulated deprccialon for:

Buildings
Buildings improvements
lnfmstructure
lnfrasf udture improvements
Equipment
Furnishing
Computers

Total accumulat€d depreclation

Total capltal assets belng depreclatsd,
net

Goyemmental activities cspltal assets,

Balance
JulY l- 2OO9 Addltlons

Batance
Retirements June30.2O1O

$ 65,725,630 6 $ - $ 65,725,630!2.459.756 5.9aa.766 t2.794.1.371 16.6543a5

74.5a53a6 5.98a.766 t2.194.737.t a2380.015

13,593,406 a03s8
9,520,368 2,050,633
9,581,107 1,063,069
2,934325 1,787,438
3,55a,1a5 156,829

420,753 4A,O85
x77,925 190,200
459,881 46,838

6.766.005 234.797

46.949.955 5.658.247

(5,755,836)
(609,901)

(3,036,083)
(549,054)

(2,653,458)
G2O,A29)
(363,737)

(38,O49)
(s.957.907)

G4\444)
(280,086)
e52,AA2)
1277,473)
(306,436)

142,532)
(61,797)
(21,577)

t436.7A4\

(19.284.854r t2.O21.297\

27.665.407 3.636.956

13,673,764
11,577,OO1
70,644,176
4,725,763
3,715,O74

468,a38
302,].25
506,719

7.000.802

52_6oa.202

(6,097,6a0)
(889,987)

(3,288,965)
i€26,467)

(2,959,894)
(363,361)
/t425,s34)

i59,566)
16.394.691)

(21.306.1451

31.302.O57

$--9.625J22 $ I2lEl;r:!7) $'rL:}6s2i72
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the

Governmental acllvlties:

General govemment
Public safe,
Pt blic works
Heahh and welfare
Education
Economic development
Cufture and aecreation
Community development

Tota, deproclation expensellovommenlal acflvlties

Buslness - tvoe ac'tivities

Capltal as.set, not belng
depreclated:

Land and construction in progress

Total capital as.s€ts not belng
depreclated

Capltal assets, belng depreclated:

Building
Building improvements

Total capilal as.s€ts beirg
depreciated

Less accumulated depreclatlon fo,:
Building

Total accumulated deprecla on

Total capltal aisets belng
depreclated, net

Balance
,ulv r- 2OOg Addirions

$ 388.790 $ ,

lVunicipality as follows:

$ 589,6a0
42,254

695,909
13,545
3,340

67,646
261,316
307.601

$2A2r291

Balanc!
Retircments June30.2O1O

$ $ 388.790

388.790

3,s37,458
45.400

3.582.858

( 4.236.475\

(1.236.415)

2.346.443

$ $ 2J35233

lvlunicipality as fol lows:

$ 89.571

$i9-571
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388.790

3,537,458
45.400

3.582.858

tr.L46.a44t 189.571)

t7.746.A44\ (89.571)

2.436.OL4 (a9.571)
Blrsineso - type Acflvlfles capltat
assets, net $ 2f24,8O4 $ (89.571)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs ofthe
Eusiness -tvp6 Activllles
Gene€l govetnment

Total depreciaflon expense€overnmontal ac vtfles
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6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2O1O are summarized as follows;

capnal proJocts oors
Fu.d - St t6& Dehs.rlce cov€mrcnt.ttledlotld c.neht Fund LEr GEnts f!!C - 

Eil-'.- &Gl
a.rounts paFble $ 313,718 s 35O,5a1 $ $ 164,080 5 82a,379
Aerued tiabttities 2G1.O64 261()64

DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES:

The amounts due to other governmental entities in the General Fund include the following:

Govelnmental Entltv

Puerto Rico Aqueduct and SewerAuthority
Retirement Systefi Administration
Genera I Services Administration

Total

DEFERRED REVENUEs

A. Municipal License Tax- The deferred revenues
to municipal license tax collected in fiscal year
20lo.L]..

7.

Amount

$ 195,8,14
97,836

350

$ 291030

8.

ol $2,364,624 in the gene.at fund retates
2009-10 that will be earned in fiscat year

B. Federal Government- The deferred revenues presented in other governmental funds
represent the portion of federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have not
been incurred. Deferred revenues from the federal government ar; as follows:

Progam Desc otlon

Community Development Block crantstate,s
ProElram
Repayment Section 108 Loan
Emergency Management Performance Grant
Tite t

Head Stan Program ARRA
Early Head Start Program
Department Ener$/ Germantown ASAP
Other Programs

Total

Amount

$ 38,020
26,397
51,466
39,870
38,095

7,739
9,O01

40.687

s 281275
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9. PROPERTYTAXES

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return which is to be filed by
May 15 of each year with the CRliil, a governmental entity created by the government oi
Puerto. Rico as part of the N4unicipal cov;rnmentat Autono;ous Law of AuguJt 1991. Reatproperty tax is assessed by the CRIV on each piece of rear estate and on each buirding.

The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current vatues for
personal property and on estimated values as of 1957 for real property tax. The tax onpersonal property must be paid in full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real
property may be paid in two insta ments by July l and January 1. rhecRtM is responsible forthe billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behatf of all the
municipalities of Puerto Rico. prior to the beginning of each fiscat year, the cRll\4 informs the
Municipality of the estimated amount of property tix expected to be collect for the ensuing
Ji:c.alyear Throughout the year, the CRIIV advances funds to the Municipatity based on th6
initial estimated collections, as modified by the quarterly revisions of estimates required law.
The CRIM is required by law to prepare a liquidation statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby
a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the N4unicipality and amounti
actually collected from taxpayers. This preliminary liquidation has to be completed on a
preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal year€nd, and a finil liquidation
made not later than six months after year€nd, subject to the verification by its lndependent
Auditors. lf the oRIM remits to the Municiparity property tax advances, which are ress than the
tax actually collected, a recelvable from the CRllVl is recorded at June 30. However, if
advances exceed the amount actually collected by the CRIM, a payable to the CRllvl is
recorded at June 30.

The CRIM issued the preliminary liquidation noting that the collections exceeded advances by
$321,653. ln the governmental funds, the entire receivable has been offset by defened
revenue since the excess was not available to pay liabilitjes of the current period_ ln the
government-wide financial statements, the entire receivable is recognized as revenue.

On January 26, 2OO0, Pubtic Law No.42 was enacted which authorized the CRtN4 to obtain a
loan up to $200,000,000, and for a term not to exceedlng 10 years, to allow for the financing
of the debt that the l\itunicipatities of puerto Rico have with the cRlM arising from fina'i
settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections through flscal yea;nded June
30, 2000. The amounts that the [4unicipalities will co ect from additionat property taxes
resulting from increases in the subsidy from the Commonwealth of puerto Rico to the
Municipalities are assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in this subsidy
was the result of the Pubtic Law No. 238, enacted on August 15, 1999. On October 11, 2OOj.
Public Law No. 146 was enacted to amend public Law No. 42, to extend the loan amortization
period up to 30 years.
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9. PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED)

Also, on October L!, 2OO2, public Law No_ 172 was enacted, to provide as an option for theMuniciparities to incrude the debt that the Municiparities ot pr",[o-ni"o have with the cRrMarising from final setflements of propeny tax advances versus actual collections for the fiscalyear ended June 30, 2001 with the loan authorjzed through public Law No. 42 enacted on
-lanuary 26,2OOO.

On June 26, 1997, public Law No. 21 was enacted which authorized the CRIM to selt property
tax receivables related to taxpayers who owned property taxes from 7974 to 1996. fh;propefty tax receivables were purchased by public Financing Corporation, a subsidiary of theGovernment Development Bank (GDB), with proceeds of a O"onO"'issr"nce. ff,is Law imposesto the CRIIV the obligation to replace-any uncollectible property tax receivable with any validproperty tax receivables or equivalent in money.

A high percentage of receivables were determined to be uncollectibte receivables, andtherefore, on octobet !r,2oor, pubric Law No. 146 was enacted which authorized the cRrMto obtain a loan to pay in advance the bonds issued by the public Financing Corporation (a
GDB subsidiary), and any costs related to the transaction. Arso, 

" 
i"r, not to exceeding 30years was authorized to the financing of the debt that the Municipalities of puerto Rico havewith the CRIN4 arlsing from the sale of property tax receivables to the public Financing

Corporation (a cDB Subsidiary).

The government wide statement of net assets includes an outstanding debt balance of
$237,560 and $261,440 retated to Law No. 42 and Law 146 re;t;i"t
Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property
taxes on the first $ 15,000 of the assessed value. For suih exempted amounts, the puerto
Rico Treasury Depanment assumes payment of the basic tax to the lvlunicipalities, except forproperty assessed at less than $ 3,500 for which no payment is made. As part oi tne
Municipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the exempt amouni to be paid by the puerto Rico
Treasury department to the Municiparities was frozen asofJanuary i, 1992. rn addition, the
law grants a tax exemption from the payment of personal property;xes of up to $ 5O,OOO of
the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less tt 

"n 
$ ISO,OOO.

The annual tax rate is 8.83% for real property and 6.83% for personal property of which 1.03%
of both tax rates are for the redemption of pubric debt issued by the c;mmonwearth of puerto
Rico, The remaining percentage is distributed as follows: (a) ;.8% and 3.gO%, respectively,
represents the Municipality,s basic property tax rate which is appropriated for basics and
accounted for in the general fund. A portion of such amount is dipositeO in an equalization
fundlogether with a percentage of the net revenues of the puerto Rlco electronic lottery and asubsidyfrom the Commonwealth of puerto Rico. From such fund, a distritution is made to allmunicipalities; (b) 2.OO% represents the ad valorem tax restiicted for debt service and
accounted for in the debt service fund.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIry OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASTC F|NANC|AL STAIEMENTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

lO.MUNICIPAL SALES AND USE TAX

On )uly 29,2007, an amendment to Act. N o. Ll7 of Juty 4,2006, known as the "Tax FairnessAct of 2006", was enacted with the purpose of establis;ing; manOatory sat"s ana use t"x of1.5% at the Municipar tevet. The t\4unicipatities of pue,tu R;c; ;;; ;;;;;n"ibte to co ect 1% ofthe corresponding tax with the same exemptions and timitations thaithe portion collected bythe Treasury Department. The Act provides for an optional 
"urtui 

on1n" unprocessed food.This surtax must be approved by the Municipat Lirgisfatuie. if,e fr"asury Department isresponsible to create, the Municipal Development Fund (.01%), the Municipat Redemption
Fund (.O3%), and the Municipat lmprovement Fund (.0&) *it tn" l."r"ining 0.5%. TheMunicipality collected $1,478,457 during the year ended irn" Sd, 2ofo. Also, $709,317from the Municipat Redemption Fund are inctudea in the Oebt Serri"e frnO.

11.LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liabitity activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as foltows;

Doscdptlon

Lease ObligationlAM
Property Tax Debtlaw
L46

Property Tax Debt Law
42

Depanment of

LIMS Repayment Ptan
Compensated Absences
Claims and Judgments
Department of tabor

tandfill obliElation

Toral

$35,642,000
9,246,000

4,518

242,337

464,744
229,300

2,878,601
75,OOO

rc5,95a
1543,517

$50,606,015

$36,927.OOO
9,086,000

26!.440

237,s60

747,591
2,974,9!9

150,000

Baglnning
Bonowlngs o,
addltlonsand
Adluslment

$3,452,0OO
410,000

273,324

Deductlons
DuaWtthlnEndlng

435,723
100,ooo

$(2,167,0OO)
(610,000)

(4,518)

{77,AA4)

14.777)

(468,744)
@7,709t

(339,405)
(25,OOO)

$1a87,0OO
966,000

1(8a4

s,078

93,005
240,000
150,OOO

195,958
l4,755t 1_57a.762

$4,67 L,O47 $(3.723.432) $51,553.230 $3,352.962
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIW OF DORADO

NOIES TO BASTC F|NANC|AL STAIEMENTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

11. LONGTERM LtABtLtTtES (CONTTNUED)

1. LeEhldebt margir}The Nrunicipatity is subject to a tegal debt margin requirement, which is
egual to 10% of the totat assessment of property tocated with-in the N4unicipality ptus
balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt servic; fund, for bonds payable to be repaid
with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt service. ln addition, before any new
bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund should be sufficient to cover the
projected debt service requirement. Long-term debt, except for the bonds and notes
payable (excluding notes payabre to the Land Authority), is paid with unrestricted funds.

2. Bonds Payable- The Municipatity issues generat and special obtigatjon bonds to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. Bonds payable
outstanding at June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Tvpe of tonds

19gtsedes
1997series
1997'sedes
1998series
1999S€ries
2O0GSeries
200GSeries
2001sedes
2002series
2004Series
2O0,l.Series
2004Series
2oo4series
2OO5-Series
2005-S€ries
2O0$Series
200Gseries
2007series
20OS'series
2008Series
2O0&Series
2008.serles
2008-sedes
20ogseries
2O09Series
2010Series
201oseries
2O10-s€ries

Total general obllgatton bonds

Maturity
Oale

7-1-2075
7 7-2076
7-7-20a6
7-1-20L3
7 7-2074
7-7-2074
7-7-2027
7-7-2026
7-12027
7-7-2029
7 7-2024
7 7-2024
7-7-2024
7-7-20a5
7-a-2020
7-7-2020
7-7 2030
7-7-2022
7-7-2033
7-!-2074
7-7-2033
7-a-2033
7-L-2032
7-7-2029
7 7-2028
7-7 2032
7-7-2035
7-a-2022

Orlglnal
Amount

2,750,000
290,000
110,000

1,065,000
3,675,O00

65,000
1,500,o00

310,O00
2,850,000

550,000
3,150,000

115,000
1,460,000

50,000
945,000

5,425,O00
532,000

1,645,000
3,650,O00

220,OOO
370,000

3,265,OO0
3,720,000
3,395,O00

930,000
1,820,000
1,095,000

537,OO0

6.20% to 6.58%
2.43% lo 7 .OO%

2.43%to 7 .OO%
5.78%to 6.04%
5.78% to 6.11%
4.7O%to 4.67%
4.ao%b 5.29%
4.10%to 5.60%
4.10% to 5.60%
2.43%to 7.OO%
4.38% lo 5.25%
4.38%to 5.25%
4.38% to 5.25%
2.43% to 7 .OO%
43A%b 4.73%
4.38%lo 4.73%
2.43% to 7 .OO%
2.43%lo 7.5O%
2.43% to 7 .5O%
2.43%to 6.25%
2.43% to 7 .5O%
2.43% lo 7 .5O%
2.43% to 7 50%
4.75%to 7.5O%
2.43% to 7.50%

5% lo7%
6% lo 7%
5%lo l%

$ 1,195,000
130,000
40,000

320,000
1,395,OO0

20,000
1,090,000

260,000
2,440,OOO

445,000
2,515,000

45,o00
1,480,000

25,000
705,000

4,335,000
4ao,000

1,440,000
3,540,O00

190,000
360,000

3,165,O00
3,595,000
3,315,O00

895,000
1,820,O00
1,095,000

512,O00

Rang6 of Balance at
lnlercst Rates Jun6 30. 2010

$ 36,927,000

42



@MMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STAIEMEI{TS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

11. LONG-TERM LtABtLtTtEs (cotrTtNuED)

These bonds, except the 1997 Series bonds for $11O,OOO and $29O,OOO, the 2OO4
Series, bonds amounting to $2B5,OOO, and the 2006 Series bonds amounting to
$532,000 are payable from the special ad vatorem property iax of 2.OO% which is
restricted for debt service and retained by the Government Dev;lopment Bank for puerto
Rico for such purposes.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows:

Yoar Endlng
June 30.

2077
2072
20a3
2074
2075
2016-2020
2027-2025
20262030
2o37-2035

Type of notes

2oo+Series
2O0s-Series
2oolseries
2007-Series
2008Series
2oo8series
Section 10& Series 200&A
2008Series
2009€eries
2009-Series
201osedes
2Oloseries

Totalnotes payable

hlerest
$ 1,446,160

1,977,92a
1,905,724
7,7a2,5A9
1,685,580
6,957,134
43a7,463
2,024,707

322,962-----w@zir

Pflnc;pal

$ 1,902,000
2,03a,000
2,169,OO0
2,195,000
1,946,000
9,696,000
7,604,000
6,392,O00
2,985,O00

TotatBondspayabte --T56B27100

3- Notes Payable The proceeds of the issuance of notes payables were used principally to
pay debt incurred in prior years and to cover the expenditures of a special event. Du;ing
the current year the munlcipal legislature authorized notes issuances for $41O,O00 anJ
the N4unicipality was granted a Section 108 Loan for $5,5OO,OOO for a hotel devetopment.
The notes are payable as follows:

Mat!rity
Date

7-7-2071
7-7-2072
7-1-2073
7-a-2074
7-7-20L5
7-7-2073
7-a-202A
7 7-2075
7-7 201-4
7-1-2033
7-1-2077
7 a-2077

Balanc€ at
June 30.2O1O

$ 6s,000
380,000
165,000
310,000
180,000
160,000

5,500,000
705,000
105,000

1,106,000
65,000

345,O00

Orlglnal Range of
Amounl lnterest rates

370,000 4.38%to 4.50%
1.190,000 4.3A%b 4.62%
345,000 4.38% ro 4.73%
48O,OOO 2.42%to7.5O%
230,000 2A3%lo 7.5O%
245,OOO 2.43%to7.50%

5,500,ooo 5.77%
925,000 2.43% to 7.5O%
725,OOO 2.43% to 7 .5O%

1,741,OOO 2.43%to7.5O%
65,000 5%to 7%

345.000 6%to 7%

$ 9,086,OO0
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONNNUED)
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11. LONG-TERM LtABtLtnEs (coNnNuED)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows:

Year Endlng
June 30.

2077
2072
2013
2074
2075
20762020
2027-2025
20262030
203L-2035
Total

$ 966.000
946,000
741,000
696,000
596.000

1,425,000
1,765,000
1,23s,000

276,OOO- t0pB6I00_

$ 351,664
395,851
354,429
320,646
247,276

7,726,440
684,269
229,026
37,245

-5r7e0-786-

Prlncipal !$eES!

4. LIMS Repayment plan- During the fiscat year 2OOL_2OO2, the Municipatity authorized theCRIM to retain the corresponding portion for the financing pro;""i 6i frrO lnformation
Management system _ LIMS, contracted by the cRtM. A totat of $746,093 is to beretain-ed in a ten years period at an interest;atu of 5.95%, untir November 2g, 2o11. AtJune 30,2010, the outstanding debt balance is $141,591. fnis amount is presented inthe government-wide financial statements.

5. 
99Tq:n::led _ 

absences. The government-wide statement of net assets jnctudes
$:r,t t t,tit ot accrued sick leave beneflts, and approximately $I,!T7,LA2 of accrued
vacation benefiG, representing the Municiparity's commitmenito tuno sucn cosG fromfuture operations.

6. Claims and Judgments - This amount represents the balance related to tegal claims atJune 30, 2010, as described in Note 14.
a 

*131T^"1r- jt_Labor Repayment ptan- This amount retates to an unemptoyment

illll"l!-"^11b]j!g_t\runiciparity agrees to repay the total of $43s,310 inctuding int;rests,
oy an agreement signed in December,2005. ln this agreement, the Municipalit! accepteci
the-debt for the total of $212,A57 and requests a pjym"nt plan io tiquidate the debt in210 monthty payments_ As ofJune 30, 2OfO, tne OeOt natance urouniJj to S1SS Sss.
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

11. LONG-TERM L|ABIL|T|ES (CONTTNUED)

8' Landfil ob,gation- state and federar raws and regurations require the Municiparityto pracea final cover on its landfill site when closed;nd perto- cert"in maintenance andmonitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. tn accordance withstatement No. 18 0f the GASB, "Accounting for rr,'unicipat sorio wasie r-andfifl crosure and
Post Closure Care Costs", the Municipalit has performed a stuOl ot the activities that
need to be imptemented at the tvunicipality's tandfi to compty with appticabte state andfederal regulations. During the fiscal year enOing.tune aO, ZCiO4, the Municipatity entered
in an agreement with a contractor to complete the final cover of ihe landfill for a lotal costof $873,569 and additionat i1T9.tio1, monitoring anO superviiion cosrs amounting to
$90,079 for a total cost of $963,648. During flscalyear 2OO+_ZOO;, u change order was
issued by $11,500 and a total of $185,61g were paid to the contractor related to ctosing
costs. ouring fiscar year 2005-2006 a totar of $374,319 were paid to the contractor for
closing costs, and in 2OOG2OO7 the amount of $202,516 were paid. During 2OO7_2O08 atotal of $65,748 were paid to the contractor for closing costs. ln 2OO8-20O9 a total of
$113,430 were paid to the contractor and others suppli;rs related to ctosing cost. During
2009-2010 a totat of $4,755 were paid to others supptiers retated to closina cost. Base;
on this, the Municipatity has recognized $28,762 as the Municipatity,s esti;ated current
cost for landfill closure as of lune 30, 2010. The preliminary annual estimate of post
closure costs has been adjusted to approximatety $1560,000 for a period of
approximatery 25 years. Actuar costs may be diffeient due to infration, changes in
technology, or changes in laws and regulations. As of June 30, 2OlO, the Municip-ality,s
landfill facilities have been closed. The balance of closure and post{tosure costs of
$28,762 and $1,550,000, respectively, are reported in the governm;nt_wide statement of
net asseG.

9. operating leasegThe Municiparity is obrigated under certain reases accounted for as
operating leases. Operating leases do not give rise to property rights or lease obligations,
and therefore the resurts of the rease agreements are not refreited in the Muniiparity(
financial statements.

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum rental payments under operating
leases that have initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in Lxcess of one year as oi
.,une 30,2010;

Year Endlng
June 3O.
2077
Total mln,mum payments
requhed

Govemmental
Activhtes

$ 54.057

q 54-O5Z
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

11. LONGTERM LtABtLtTtES (CONTTNUED)

l0.Revenue BondsEnterprise Funds - tn 1994, the Municipality issued $2,O9O,OOO revenue
bonds, in which the Municipality pledges rent income from the enterprise fund (completed
construction by Jury 1996 of the "commerciar pavirion Rafaer Herndndez cor6n,) io pay
such debt. On January 18, 2OOO, the Municipatity formatizes a revenue bond payable with
Banco Santander puerto Rico. This loan was used to refinance the outstanding loan with
Governmental Development Bank at 9.OO%.

The note wirr be paid by semi-yearry insta[ments of $103,280, which incrudes interest at
7.25% fot the first ten years. After the first ten years, the Municipality can exercise the
option to fully repay the outstanding batance of $943,238 or refinance the debt at an
interest rate determined by the lesser of 9.50% or 1.OO% over the London lnterbank
Offgr.elRate (L.t.B.O.R.) +1%). Total principal payments durjng the current year amounted
to $11:,269. The outstanding debt balance as ;f June 30, 2-OtO amounti to $695,647.
The debt service requirements to maturity including $51,567 of interest are as follows:

Year Ending
June30.

207a
Total

12.PENSION PLAN

The Employee's Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its lnstrumentalities (the
Retirement System) is a cost€haring multiple defined benefit pension plans sponsored by,
and reported as a component unit of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico. Alt regulii
employees of the Municipatity under 55 years of age at the date of employment bec;me
members ofthe Retirement System as a condition to their employment.

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to
legislation enacted by the commonwearth's legisrature. Disabirity ietirement benefits are
available to members for occupationat and non€ccupational disabilities. Retirement benefits
depend upon age at retirement and the number of years of creditabre service. Benefrts vest
after ten years of plan panicipation.

Members who have attained 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of
creditable service or members who have attained 5g years of age and have compl;ted ten
years of creditable service are entifled to an annual benefit payabl; monthly for life.

The amount ofthe annuity shall be one and onehalf percent of the average compensation, as
defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service up to twenty years, plus two
percent of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of
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COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOIES TO BASIC FINANCIAL SIATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

12. PENSION PIAN (CONTTNUED)

creditable service in excess of 20 years. ln no case will the annuity be less than g2OO per
month.

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entifled to receive
the Merit Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65 percent
of the average compensation, as defined; otherwise tltey will re;eive 75 percent of the
average compensation, as defined. No beneflts arc payable if the participant receives a
refund of his/her accumulated contributions.

commonwealth regisration requires emproyees to contribute 5.775% for the first $55o oftheir
monthly gross salary and 8.275% lor the excess over $ 55O of monthly gross satary. The
Municipality is required by the same statute to contribute 9.275% of the panicipant,i gross
salary. Total Municipality contributions to the abovementioned plans during the y"", e-nd"d
June 30, 2010 recorded as pension expenditures were approximately $634,015. T'his amount
represents 10O% of the required contribution.

On September 24, 1999, an amendment to Act. No. 447 of May 15, 1951 (which created the
Retirement System), was enacted with the purpose of establahing a new pension program
(System 2000). Employee's participation in the current system as of December Si, t-ggg,
may elect to stay in the deflned benefit plan or transfer to the new program. persons joining
the Municipality on or after January I,2OOO, will only be allowed to become members oi
System 2000. System 2OOO wi reduce the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those
employees whojoined the current plan on or after April 1, 1990.

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Ljnder
this new plan, there will be a pool of pension asseG, which will be invested by ERS together
with those of the current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth of puerto Rico wr-ll not
guarantee benefits at retirement age. The annuity will be based on a formula which assumes
that each year the employee's contribution (with a minimum of g-275oA to the employee,s
salary up to a maximum of 10%) will be invested in an account which wi either: 1fy eirn a
fixed rate based on the tweyear Constant l\4aturity Treasury Note or, (2) earn a rate equat to
75% of the return of the ERS,S investment portfolio (net of management fees), or (3) earn a
combination of both alternatives. participants will receive periodic;ccount statements similar
to those of defined contribution prans showing their accrued barances. Disabirity pensions wi
not be granted under System 2000. The emptoyer,s contribution (9.275% of tile emptoyee,s
salary) will be used to fund the current plan.

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for the
year end€d June 30, 2010, a copy of \ryhich can be obtained from the Retirement System,
Minillas Station, PO Box 42OO3, San Juan, pR OO94O-2O03.
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13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Property Division is responsibte of assuring that the Municipality,s property is property
insured. Annually, the property Division compile;the information of all property owned and its
respective market value. After evaluating this information, the property Division submits thedata rega-rding the Municipali8,s properties to the public lnsurance Department at the
Treasury Department of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico who is responsible for purchasing
all property and casualty insurance policies of all municipalities. setfled claims have n;
exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

14. COMMITMENTS AND COI{TINGENCIES

The N4unicipality is a defendant in a number of lawsuits arising principally from the ordinary
course ofthe lrrunicipality s activities.

with respect to pending and threatened ritigation, the Municiparity has reported riabirities of
$15O,OOO for awarded or anticipated unfavorable judgments in the covernment-Wide
Financial Statements. This amount was included in the fin;ncial statements and represents
the amounts estimated as a probable liability or a liability with a fix or expected due date,
which will require future available financial resources for its payments.

It is the management's opinion, based on the advice of the legal counsel, that the potential
claims against the Municipality not covered by insurance will noi materially affect the hnancial
resources for its payment.

The Municipality participates in a number of federal financial assistance programs funded by
the Federal Government. Expenditures finance by these programs are subjecito financial and
compliance audits by the appropriate grantor or grantee. The amount, if any, of expenditures
which may be disallowed by such audits cannot be determined at this time, although the
Municipality management expects such amounts, if any, will not be material.

15.FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the folowing statements that have effective dates afterJune 30, 2010:

a. GASB Statement No.54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2010.

b. GASB Concepts Statement No. 5, Seryice Elfotts and Accomplishments_ an
Amendment of GASB Concepts Statements No. 2. Thls Statement provides a
framework to be used by the GASB in considering guidance for reporting SEA by
state and local governmental entities and amends terminolos/ and other
information in GASB:CS2.
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15.FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNNNG PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The impact of these statements on the Municipality,s basic financial statements has not yet
been determined,

16. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

A. GOVERNMENTAL WDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following restatements have been made in the governmental wide financial
statements, which are reported as an adjustment to the b;ginning net assets:

pe.cdo.on co;eclllfltar "tlffi. &br
Netassets, beginning $ 79,526,589 $ 2,259,4A9 $ 81,7S6,078
To cotrecl prior y€ar accounts payabte t273.324t - t273.324t
Net assets, beginningas resiated $19283265 $ 2jstutSg S_!j|.j12J5t
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

BUDGETARY COMPARISON4ENERAL FUND
(SEE NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCI{EDULE)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

A.t*ramouit ';I'lH.SI
Budseted A|lwnr! GudrErary Be*.) pcttlv.-

Odg.at Fhal (seNote 1) (Ne€rrtve)

REVENUES:

Municipat tierc€ tax
Mlnicipalele6 a.d u* lax
Licenses, pemits and other to€ttares

Tot l ,.Enu6 batde GnyoEr

Tor.l rMn!€3 a.d bld€t t 6.ry@€r

EXPENDIIUSES, EI{CUMARANC€S AT{O OIHER
TINANdNG USES:

Cuhure and EEtion
Operating t..nsfer to other fund

$ a,503,821 $ a,503,821
4,D5,250 4,!25,250
1,305,000 1,305,000
1,420,000 1,420,000
2,009,555 2,907,776
14L17A a4117A
20.000 20,000

665,000 665,@0
L062.6N a.iB-217

19,252,4U 20,20c'242

$ a,503,a21
5,197,065
L474,457
1417,966
2,463,101

174,!62
19,372

494,064
237 210

20,7892!A

1.362 478

22.151636

13,030,325 546.314
2,037,9aa 50.059
6,8a6352 (!,772.23!\
576,4A7 219Aa
125.378

22.656_530 r1.093.a701

$,
1071,a15

773,457
397,96
(34,675)

32,9e4
(624)

(166,936)
(881.007r

544,976

1.362.414

19.252.404 21562.660

Toral exDen tltqrB, enqimbraDes .rd other nn.nctng \s 252.4M 21562 6@

E CESS (DEFC|ENCY) OF REVS{UES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDMJRES, ENCUiIBRANC€S ATD OTHER
FINAIiICIIIIG SOURCES (USES)

10,592,733 13,576,639
2,150,997 2,O$,O47
5,723,590 5,a74121
651,8rt4 59a,475
733.240 12537A

588.976

lt 50]{,!91) (l5Aff94)
E&l.natlon of Om6rar6:

Sdr.€/hnoG ol r€soirB
actrral amounis (budgetary lasis).aEitabte for 6ppropriation" from the budgeiary c!mp6r1$n s.hedute
Difiereh@budgetto USGAAP:

USG,AAP adjustment ro erenues

Total @.nE and other fin.ndng &urc6. E rcpdGd on $e .rrt€.nent ot rdo.ue.t erpsdhuE, .nr, drangB hr
tund balanB t2LSO€2i2
LlrG/outfws of laurc.sr
Actu.lamounrs (budg€tary ba$)-tot!t ( ha€es to appbpnarioG. fiom the budgetEry comp6rison schedute
uf,ere.csbudEet to UsG AP:
Nonbudgeted transfe, out
Nonbudgeted expenditures
Pnor 

'@r 
encumbranc6 rorded as.urentvea, apfndnuBfor USGAAP bas6

curred ye6r en.Jhb6nE ecorded 6 erpenditurB ior budEierar, pu,pc6
Tot l.exp.ndltuB and oth., fnanclig llg & roioned on tho st tma{ ot Evnue., ar!.ndhure., and chaltlle. h
fund bdan6 s23_4455si

(1) R€lrenb tund balance €rned ov6. trom prto. yeaB

$22,151,636

(1,362,4181
1.OT7.O14

$22,656,530

255.472
314,547

1,130,564
(911.556)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BUDGEIARY COMPARISON SCHEDULEGENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AI{D ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BudEetarv Control

The l\4unicipatity's annuat budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting,
which is not in accordance with USGMP, and represents dlparirentat appropriation;
recommended by the Mayor and approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the
beginning of the fiscal year. Amendments to the budget requirJthe approval of the
Municipal Legistature. Transfers of appropriations withi; the budget, known as Mayor,s
Resolutions, do not require the approval ofthe N4unicipal Legislature.

The Municipality prepares its annual budget includingthe operations ofthe generalfund.
For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e.,
purchase orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when incurred. For USGAAP
reporting purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year+nd are reported as reservations
of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the
commitments will be honored duringthe subsequent year.

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapseat the end of such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project
appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the Municipai Legislature 

-has

authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forwaid and made
available for current spending.

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule{eneral Fund is
the budget ordinance at June 30, 2010 representing the originat budget. There were no
supplemental appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2010.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Federal Grantor/passthrough

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Pass.through the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico Department of Education:

Child and Adult Care Food program 10.558

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN
DEVELOPMENT:

Direct Program:
Section I Housing Choice Voucher 14.871
Program

Community Oevelopment Block Grant -
Section 108 Loan Guarantees

ARRA{ommunity Development Btock
Grant (Recovery Actfunded)

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re
Housing Program (Recovery Act funded) 74.257

Pass-through the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico lvlunicipality of San Juan:

Housing Opportunities for persons with
AIDS (HOPWA)

1,4_241,
Pass-through the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico Office ofthe Commissioner of
Municipal Affairs:

Community Development Block Grant -
State Program

Federal
CFDA

Number

Pass.th rough
Entity ldentifying

Number Expenditures

Not Available

Not Available

$269,A77

269,A77

74.24A

74.253

Not Available

NotAvailable

Not Available

1,866,515

7 4,47 4

245,000

67,265

16,807

1,080,780

o7-FO-22
02-Fe22
02-AB-22
03-4822
03-FC22

o4-AB-002
o+Fcoo2
04-FGOo474.228
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COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Federal Grantor/pass.through
Grantor/Program or Cluster Tifle

Federal
CFDA

Number

Passth rough
Enttty

ldentifying
Number

Expend itu res

Total U.S. Department of Housing and
Urbsn Development

U.S DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico Office ofthe Commissioner of
Municipal Affairs:

Community Prevention Grant 16.549

Total U.S. Department ofJustice

U.s DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:

Pass-through the pR

Administration:
Highway

20.500
Federal Transit Administration- Capital
lnvestment Grants

Pass-through Commonwealth of puerto Rico
- Transit Safety Commission

lncentive Grants

Total U.S. Depatunent of Transportation

U.S DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block
Grant (Recovery Act funded)

Total U.S. Department of Ener$/

3,354,841

Not Available 72,277

12,2L7

4,25A

43,72020.600

47,97a

12,668

12,668

47.72A Not Available
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2O1O

Federal Grantor/pas$through
G rantor/Progra m or Cluster Tifle

Federal
CFDA

Number

Pas.eth rough
Entlty

ldentifying
Number

Expenditures

U.S DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERV|CES:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico Governor's Office (OGAVE) (Ctuster of
Programs)

Special Programs forAging - Title t, part
C - Nutrition Services

Nutrition Services lncentives program

Pass-through the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico Administration for Children and
Families (ACUDEN):

Community Service Block Grant

Head Start Program

ARRA-Head Start

ARRA-Early Head Start

Total U.S. Department of Heatth and Human
Services

U.S.DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND
SECURITY:
Pass-through the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico Emergency Management Agency:

Hazard Mitigation crant

Homeland Security Grant program

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

TOTAL DPENDITURES OF FEDEML
AWARDS

93.045

93.0s3

Not Available

Not Available

297,20!
74,1,40

55,444

2,4O2,772

42,t3A

90,100

93.569

93_600

93.708

93.709

Not Available

02{H-0,183-39

Not Available

Not Available

3,301,795

97.039

97.067

8,987

33,139

42,L26

$ 7,0'4L,502

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RI@
MUNICIPAL]TY OF DORADO

NOIES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDIIURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The accompanying schedure of Expenditures of Federar Awards incrudes the federar grant
activity of the Munrciparity of Dorado and is presented on the modified accruar basis of
accounting. The basis of accounting is the same used to prepare the fund financial
statements. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Goye rnments, and Non-proftt
Organizations.

b. RETATIONSHIP TO FEDEML FINANCIAL REPORTS;

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule are included in the Capital project Fund-
Federal grants and Other Governmental Funds in the Municipality's fund financial
statements- The reconciliation between the expenditures in the fund fi;ancial statements
and the expenditures in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is as follows;

Description Capital
Projects Federal

Grants

Other Total
Governmental

Funds

Per Schedule
Expenditures
FederalAwards

Non - federal
programs
Expe nd itu res

Total expenditures
in the fund financial
statements

of
of

$ 74,474 $ 6,963,028 $ 7,041,502

(60,427) 63,301 2,47 4

$ 48,o47 $ 7,026,329 $ 7,044,376
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Certified Pub

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE ANDorHER MATTERS BASED oN AN AUDrr oF FTNANcTAL srATiMinrs prnronrueo tu
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Municipal Legtslature
Municlpality of Dorado
Do;ado, Puerto Rico

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of th; Munrciparity of Dorado, puerto Rico, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 201O, which co ectively com;rise t;e Munictpality,s basicfinancial statements and have issued our report thereo; dated De;ember L7,2OLO. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unitedstates of America and the standards appricabrelo financiatiuoits coniainea in covernment
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptro er Generat ofthe United States.

lnternal Control Over Financial ReportinE
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Municlpality of Dorado's internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing ou, arOiting procedures for thepurpose of expressing our opinions on the flnancial itatemens, but n;t for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Munlcipality of Dorado's internal control
over.financial reporting Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Municipallty of Dorado's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internar contror exists when the design or operation of a contror does not alow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, toprevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deflciency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internar coniror such that there is a reasonabrepossibility that a material misstatement of the entity,s financial statements will not beprevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and wai not designed to identify a
deficiencies in internal control over financial reponing that might be def;iencies, signiftant
deficiencies, or material weakness, as defined above. H&ever, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be sjgnificant deficiencies ininternal control over financial reportjng. Significant deficiencies are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item Lo{,L. A significant
deliciency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal ;ontror that is ress
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAT REPORNNG AND ON COMPLIANCE ANDorHER MATTERS BAsED oN AN AUDrr oF FTNANcTAL srATEMiNi penronuro rru
AccoRDANcE wrH GouERNMENT AuDrrrvc STANDARDa (CoNTTNUED)

Comoliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Munlcipafity of Dorado,sfinancial statements are free of material misstatement, we perforr"Jt""t" oi it" aompliancewith certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grrnt ugr""r"nt", noncompliance
with which courd have a direct and materiar effect on the delermina-tion offinanciar statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express sucn an opinion. ffre results of ourtests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to bereported under Goyernment Auditing Standards.

We noted cenain other matters that we reported to management of the Municipality of
Dorado in a separate letter dated December 17, 2010.

The Municipallty of Dorado's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in
the accompanying schedule offindings and questioned costs. We did not audit Municipality of
Dorado's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and federal
aw?19ing ag.gncjes and pass-through entites. However, this report is a mJter of public record
and its distribution is not timited.

u4af.
CPA, PSC

San Juan, Puerto Rico
December 17,2010

Stamp No. 2575452 ofthe puerto Rico
Society of Certified Pubtic Accountants
was affixed to the record copy ofthis report.

LdpeT-Vega, CPA , PSC

mts / Management Advisors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTON COMPLIANCE WTH REQUIREMENTS APPUCABTE TOEACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OViR 

'drr,iir-r,qNCE 

rr,r ICCONONTVCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honoiable Mayoi
and the Munlclpat Legistature
Municipality of Dorado
Dorado, Puerto Rico

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the Municlpality of Dorado with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Oftice of Manaiement and Budget p;Mq Cncuh; A_133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each-of its major fede-rai programs for the year
ended June 30,2O1O. The Munictpatig oI Dorado's major federal progiams are identified inthe summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying scnEJute of findings andquestioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of la;s, regulations, contracts, andgrants appricabre to each of its major federar programs is the respon;ibirity of the Munrcipartyof Dorado's maragement. Our responsibjlity is to express an opinion on the Munlclpality oi
Dorado's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance.in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards appticabG to financi; audits
contained in Goyern ment AuditinE Standardg issued by the Comptroller Generat of the UnitedStates; and OMB Circular 4-133, Audits of States, Local Governmints, and Non-profit
Otganizations. fhose standards and Ol\48 Circular A_133 require that we plan and perform theaudit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and materiat effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence aboutthe Munlclpality of Dorado,s compliance with those require;ents and performing such otherprocedures as we consjdered necessary in the circumstances. We beljeve that our auditprovides a reasonable basis for our oplnion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination
of the Municipallty of Dorado's compliance with those requirements.

ln our opinion, the Municipality of Dorado complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs
identifled in-the accompanying schedute of findings and questioned cosis for the year 6ndedJune 30, 2010. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances ofnoncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133 and v,/hich are d.scritled in the accompanying schedute of findings andquestioned costs as items 1GO2 thru 1GO5.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTON COMPLIANCE WTH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TOEACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OViR;6rtii,iiNiCg rru ACCONOMCE
wtTH OMB CTRCULAR A_133 (CONTTNUED)

lnternal Control Over Comoliance
Management of the Municlpality of Dorado is responsible for establishing and maintainingeffective internal control over compliance witn'tne requiremenis 

-of 
laws, regulations,contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. ln planning and performing ouriudit, weconsidered the Municlpality of Dorado's internal control-over;ompliance with therequirements that could have a direct and material effect on a ma;oi feaerat program in orderto delermine our auditing procedures for the purpose oi 

"rpres"ing 
our opinion oncompliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an oplnion on tne enectiveness of internalcontrol over compliance, Accordingly, we do notixpress an opinion on the effectiveness ofMuniclpality of Dorado,s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemat control over compliance exists when the design or operation of acontrol over compliance does not allow management or employees, in ihe normat course ofperforming their assigned functions, to prevenl or detect and;orrect n;ncompriance with atype of compliance requirement ofa federar program on a timery basis. A materiar weaknessin internal control over compliance is a deficierrcy, a combination of deficiencies, in internalcontrol over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not beprevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described inthe first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identiry all deficiencies in internal
control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or mat;rial weaknesses in internalcontrol over compliance. we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compllance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, weidentified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to besignificant deficiencies as described in the accompanying scn"Ori" of findings andquestioned costs as items 10{2 through 10{5. A s(nifr'cani deficiency in internar controrover compliance is a deficiency, or a combination oi deficiencies, in internat control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compljance, yei im"portant enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

The Munlclpality of Dorado's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in
ll-"_::::-Tt:ll"C ""hedute 

of.findings and question;d costs. we did not a;dit Muntcipa ty of
uorado s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

I

I
Cenifi.d Public Accounrants / Manasement Ad!isors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WTH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAT CONTROL OVER CrJrUPr-iAr.rCi rr,r ACCONOEruCE

wIH OMB CTRCULAR A_lj13 (CONTTNUED)

We also noted other matters involving the internal control over compliance and certain
immaterial instance of noncompliance, which we have reported to ,un"g"r"nt ot th"
Municlpality of Dorado in a separate tetter dated March 18, 2611.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and federal
awarding agencies and pass,through entities. However, this report is a mitter of public record
and its distribution is not timited.

-&h"m"*
San Juan, Puerto Rico
March 18, 2011

Stamp No. 2575453 ofthe Puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the record copy ofthis report

L6pex-l'ega, C PA , PSC
)

\ /
Cenified Public AccouDtors / Managemenr Advisors
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF F|ND|NGS AND QUESflONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Section I - Summary ofAuditor,s Resutts

Flnancial Statemenls

Type of auditor's report issued:

lnternal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identifi ed?
Signiflcant deficiencies jdentified not considered to
be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Fedenl awads

lnternal Control over major programs:
Material weakness identified?
Significant deficiencies identifled not considered to
be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reponed in accordance with Circular
A-133, Section .510(a)?

ldentification of major programs:

CFDA Number
14.228 

-74.a7 L
93.600

Dollar threshold used to distinguish

Yes X No

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program
Head Start Program

$ 300,000

Unqualmed

Yes

Yes X

Yes

NoX

None reported

NoX

NoX

None reported

Yes

Yes X

unqualmed

between Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Commun@

Yes No X
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

ScHEDULE OF FtND|NGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Statement of Condtflon During our examination of the Municipality's accounting system, we
noted that it does not summarize the transactions in a formal General
Ledger in order to properly record and account for the transactions of all
of its Governmental Funds (Local, State and Federal Funds).

Section ll - FinanciatstatemenE Findings

Findlng Reference 1O{1

Requlrcmenl Flnanclal Reporting - Accounting Records

Crlteria

Cause of Condltlon

Effect of Condition

R6commendation

Article 8.010 of State Act Number 81 of August 30, 1991 states that the
Municipality should maintain an effective and updated accounting
system.

The fvlunicipality did not establish effective internal control over the
transactions recorded on its accounting records. Also, the accounting
data is not summarized in the form of a double+ntry general ledge;
record.

The Municipality accounting system did not provide updated and
complete financial information that present the financial position and
the result of operations and the change in fund balances. Such
information is necessary to take management decisions.

We recommend that the Municipality should establish internal control
procedures in order to maintain an accounting system that contains
information pertaining to authorizations, obligations, unobligated
balances, assets, liabilities, ouflays or expenditures, interfund
transactions, etc.

None

The Commissioner of Municipal Affairs ("OCAM"), amended the Law so
that the tvlunicipality, could select the accounting system, according to
the Generally Accepted Accounting principles. The Municipality is in the
process of preparing the request of proposal for the implementation the
new accounting software. Once the situation is solved the Municipality
expects to fully comply with the auditor's recommendation.

lmplementation datei January, 2OI2

Responsible Person: Mr. Luis R. Sierra Salgado, Director of Finance
62
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COMMONWEALII{ OF PUERIO RIOO
MUNICIPALIW OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESNONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Section lll - Major FederatAward program Findlngs and euestioned Costs

Findln€lReterence LGO2

Pto$tam

Requlr€ment

Community Development Block crants - State! program (CFDA. No.
14.228); U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development; pass
throuElh the Commonwealth of puerto Rico - Office of Commissioner of
Municipal Affalrs (OCAM)

Cash Management

statement of condiflon We performed a Cash Management test and examined ten (1O) cash
advances received by the program during the fiscat year 2OiAg_2O!O.
The following summarizes the situations found:

a. For nine (9) cash advances we noted that the Municipality requested
funds that were not disbursed on a reasonable lapse oftime.

b. Also, the Community Development Block Grant_State program cash
account maintained a monthly average cash balance of $66,3g1 in
books.

crneria Code of Federal Regulations 24, Subpart l, Sec.57O.489 (c) requires a
cash management system in order to minimize the time elapsed
between the transfer of funds from the pass-through grantor and
disbursements made by the grantee.

Cause of Condition The Program disbursements procedures failed to assure that the funds
requested and received from the pass_through Grantor be disbursed in
compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations Requirements.

Effecr ot Condttion The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 24,
Subpart t, Sec.s70.489 (c).
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COMMONWEALI}I OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Section lll - Major FederalAward program Findings and euestioned Costs

Flndiflg R6ference

Recommendatlon

Questloned Costs

Management Response
and Correctlve Acllon

1OO2 (contlnued)

We recommend management to strengthen jt,s disbursement
procedures to minimize the tjme elapsed between the transfer of funds
from the Pass-through Grantor and the disbursements made by the
Program.

None

The Program Management will instruct program accountant to begin the
disbursement process when the requisitions of funds were submitted to
the Office of the Commissioner of l\4unicipal Affairs (OCAtvt) in order to
assure that when the funds were transferred by the pass-through
Grantorthe Program will disburse its immediately.

lmplementation Date: lmmediately

Responsible Person: Mr. Roberto Ramos
Federal Programs Department Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RI@
MUNICIPALIW OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FtND|NGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Section lll - Mayor Federal Program Award Findin8ls and Questloned Costs

Flndlng Reference 10{3

Protlram

Requkement

Statemenl oI Condhion

Sectlon 8 Housing Cholce Vouchers (CFDA. No. 14.871); U.S.
Department of Houslng and Urban Development

Special Test-Deposltory Agreements

We noted that the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program did not
comply with the compliance requirement of Depository Agreements. The
PHA is required to enter into depositary agreement vi/ith their flnancial
institutions in the form required by HUD. (Form HUD-51999)

24 CFR Subpart D, Section 982.156 states. (c) The PHA must enter into
an agreement with the depositary in the form required by HUD. (d) lf
required under a written freeze notice from HUD to the depositary: (i) The
depositary may not permit any withdrawal by the PHA of funds held
under the depositary unless expressly authorized by written notice from
HUD to the depositary: and (ii) The depositary must permit withdrawals
of such funds by HUD. (2) HUD must send the PHA a copy of the freeze
notice from HUD to the depositary.

The Program is not performing an effective review of compliance
requirement that are required by HUD.

The PHA is not in compliance with laws and established regulation as
prescribed by HUD.

Procedures should be implemented to ascertain that the PHA complies
with the established Federal Regulation, as prescribed by HUD.

None

The Program will take procedures to comply with the preparation of Form
HUD-51999, Depository Agreement. The Municipality will submit a
corrective action plan outlining this finding to be corrected in a detail
manner no laterthan April 2011.

lmplementation Date: ln process

Responsible Person: Maria l. Molina
Federal Program Department Director

C teria

Cause of Condhlon

Efiect of Condltlon

Recommondatlon

Questioned Costs

lllanaElement Response
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Section lll - Mayor Federal Award Program Findings and eues oned Costs

- Flndlng Refercnce LO{4

Prog6m Head Start (CFDA. No.93.600); U.S. Department of Heatth and Human
Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of pueno Rico
Administration for Chlldren and Famllles.

- Requtremont Cash Management

srar€ment of condtflon During our Cash Management Test, we found the following exceptions:

_ 
, y#f:S",*T,ffi Progrram requested funds that were not disbursed

b. During two (2) months the bank reconciliations reflected an
overdraft.

criterta OlvlB Common Rule, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (7), requires a cash
anagement system in order to minimize the time elapsed between the

transfer of funds from the U.S. Treasury and the disbursements made by
the grantee.

cause ofcondhlon There are no adequate internal controls to assure that funds requested
_ to the federal agency are disbursed for immediate needs.

Effect of Conditon The Program is not in compliance with OMB Common Rule, Subpart C,
Section 92.20 (b) (7).

Recommendaflon We recommend management to follow cash management system- procedures developed by it in order to assure that funda requesed are
disbursed as required by the regulation.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Sectlon lll - Mayor FederalAward ProEram Findings and Questioned Costs

FlndlngReference 1GO4(contlnued)

questloned Costs None

Management Response
And corectlve Ac on The Delegate Agency (lvlunicipality Government of Dorado, P. R.) did not

request funds that were not disbursed on a reasonable lapse of time.
Based on the contract between the Grantee "Departamento de la Familia,
Administraci6n para el cuidado y Desarrollo lntegral de la Niiez", and the
Delegate Agency N4unicipality of Dorado P.R. contract number 2009-
000187, under Section Eight (8), page five (5), established the following:
The Delegate Agency must submit once a month the request for funds
base on the expenses already paid for the prior month, list of obliEations
to be paid during the month, the funds were requested including the
estimated payroll expense for the current month.

The Delegate Agency (lVunicipality Government of Dorado, P.R.) advanced
local funds to cover any shortage of funds during the month and was
repaid to them by the "Head Start Project the next month when funds were
received from the Grantee. All funds received from the Grantee were
utilized during the month the funds were requested. Any cash not used
was reduced from the next month request for funds.
ln April 2009, the Governing Board of the Municipality of Dorado Head
Start project approved the procedure to minimize the time between receipt
of the funds and the disbursement of it. Also the Normative Policy
Committee ratified the procedure on May 2009. The Procedure was
implemented on June 2010.
The Delegate Agency (Municipality Government of Dorado P.R.) issued
some checks and will not send them until funds were received from the
Grantee to cover them. Due to the date printed in the check in the bank
reconciliation showed overdraft and in the bank statement did not showed
it, due to checks were hold by the Delegate Agency Finance section until
funds were received.

The Delegate Agency is on compliance with OMB Common Rule, Subpart
C, Section 92.20 (b)97) due to payments were made within 30 to 45 days
of receiving the funds. Any payment done after 45 days was due to
problems with the invoices or the receipt of merchandized or services.

Implementation Date; ln Process

Responsible Person: l\rrs. Ana Benitez - Program Director
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESNONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Sectlon lll - Major FederalAward Program FindlnEs and Questloned Costs

Flndlng ReIer6ncr

Program

Requlremenl

Statemellt of Conditlon

10{5

Head Start Program (CFDA. No. 93.600); U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Admlnlstratlon for Children and Families

Reporting

ln our Reporting Test, we observed the following exceptions;

a. We found differences between the amounts reported as federal
expenditures in the monthly financial reports (January and February
2O7O) and in the Closing Report for the Fiscal Year 2010 submitted
to the pasgthrough agency and the amounts detailed in the cash
register and the general ledger.

b. The expenditures detailed in the monthly financial reports are based
on estimates. As result, the financial reports are not in accordance
with the program accountlng records. Differences are not adjusted in
the closing repons. ln addition, we noted that no adequate
procedures exist to document the adjustments posted to the general
ledger accounts.

The OMB Common Rules, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (1), states that
the grantee must maintain internal control procedures that permits
proper tracing of funds to the accounting records. Also, it requires
accurate, current and complete disclosure offinancial results.

Adequate internal controls do not exist to assure the correctness of
closing reports submitted to the federal agencies.

Crlterla

Cause of Condition
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Sectlon lll - Major Federal Award Program Findines and Questloned Costs

1G 05 (Continued)

The program is not in compliance
Section 92.20 (b) (1).

Flndlng Reference

Effect of Condltlon

Recommendation

with the Common Rules, Subpart C,

Questloned Costs

Management Response

We recommend the Program to establish monitoring procedures to
assure the accuracy of accounting records and a correct completion of
the closing reports. The program fiscal area must establish adequate
communication channels with the Finance Department in order to obtain
documental evidence related to obligations issued, cash receipt and
disbursements in a daily manner, in order to be posted in the accounting
register maintained by the Program. The Program fiscal area most
assures that accounting records are updated at the end of each month
in order to prepare accurate reports to the federal agency. ln addition
the accountant must assure that the cash register and the general

ledger are duly reconciled and journal entries posted in the general

ledger and duly documented and explained. We consider that the
Program Director must evaluate the implementation of a computer
accounting software to maintain the program books. Due to the large
volume of transactions manual books are considered inefflcient.

None

And correc ve Actlon Based on the contract between the Grantee "Departamento de la Familia,
Administraci6n para el cuidado y Desarrollo lntegral de la Niiez", The

Delegate Agency (lvunicipality Government of Dorado P.R.) required that
the Delegate Agency provide an expenditure report monthly by the fifth
(sth) of each month to the Grantee. Due to the due date for the financial
report to the Grantee the Delegate Agency had to estimate the expenses
of the prior month for reporting purpose. lf the reports were not sent to the
Grantee by the fifth (Sth) of each month the Delegate Agency will not have
sufficient funds to operate the program and pay bill and payroll on a timely
basis. Also, the Grantee takes approximately twenty one (21) days in

reimburse the funds to the Delegate Agency. During this period the
l\4unicipality of Dorado advance funds to the program for its operations.
After submitting the report to the Grantee the Accountants of the Delegate
Agency review and did the proper adjustments and entries to the books.
Ihe financial records were reconciled and all adjustments and entries
were posted and showed they were accurate, current and gave complete
disclosure of financial resu lts.
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MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Sectlon lll - Major FederalAward Program FindinEF and Questloned Costs

Ftndtng Reference 1G OS (Continued)

Management Response
And Co[ectlve Action (Continued)

The Delegate Agency (Municipality Government of Dorado, P.R.) had to
submit by the fifth (5rh) of the month after closing the fiscal year. This
report is preliminary, and the Grantee and Delegate had up to ninety days
(90) to submit the final SF-269 for the fiscal year. The Delegate Agency
submitted all reports required by the Grantee under contract number
2009{00187.

The Delegate Agency had established the t\,\,enty eights of each month as
the closing date for the month to eliminate the estimates for expenditures.

The Head start Program had set a meeting with the Delegate Agency
Finance section to discuss the ways that the information flows daily from
them to the Project Accountants.

The Delegate Agency had contracted a vendor for establishing a new
accounting software and system for the Municipal Government. A meeting
with the Head Start Accountants was held on )anuary 207L in which all
the needs were presented to the consultant firm. The Delegate Agency is
waiting for the report and recommendations.

lmplementation date: ln process

Responsible Person: Mrs. Ana Benitez, Program Director and Teresa
Acevedo, Program Accountant.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERIO RI@
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Orlgnal CFDA No. Curent Slatus of Prior Year Audlt Fed€ral Awad FIndlnEB - Part lll FlMlngs
Flndlng (As requlrod byOMB Circular +r33)
Number

o9-02 93.600 Manaqement should follow cash mana{ement svstem orocedures
develooed bv it in order to assure that funds reouested are
disbursed as reouired bv the reEulation.

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the flnding for
the current year. Finding Reference 1004.

09-03 93.600 l anadement should fotmalize a contract model accordinE with the
federal reouirements bv any services. Also. include those contract
orovisions. which are reouired bv federal reEulations. before each
contract execution.

Corrective action was taken.

09-04 93.600 The reouired reoorts should be prepared includinE all the reouired
information and submitted in a timelv manner. lf the deadline is not
achievable. a reouest for an extension should be obtained from the
federal aEencv. Also. we recommend that the Municioalitv establish
monitorinE orocedures to assure thqa@uErcylflleO !9
and a correct comoletion of the closing reoorts. The oroEram
accountant must establish adequate communication channels with
the Finance DeDartment in order to obtain documental evidence
related to cash receiot and disbursemeDtsin a lai
order to be Dosted in the cash reaister maintained lylhc pIoEIam
accountant. This control will assure that accountinA records are
actualized at the end of each month in order to orepare accurate
monthlv reoorts to the oass.throuah agency. ln rdditioDJhc
accountant must assure that the cash reAister and the Eeneral
ledEer are dulv reconciliated and iournal entries posted in the
Eeneral ledaer are dulv documented and exolained. We consider
that the oroeram Director must evaluate the implementation of a

comouter accounting software to maintain the oroEram books due
to a volume of transactions manual books are considered
inefficient.

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 10-05.
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@MMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Oddnal
Flndlng
Number

CFDA No. Cur6rn s'iatuB of Prior Yesr Audft Federal Arvad FlMlnEs - Pan lll Flndin6
(As lequllrd bY OMB Orcular 41:}3)

o8-02 93.600 Manapement should follow cash manaEement svstem orocedures

develooed bv it in order to assure that funds reouested are
disbursed as reouired bv the re{ulation

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 10-04.

08-o3 93.600 The reouired reoorts should be oreDared includinE all the reouired
information and submitted in a timelv manner' lf the deadline is not

achievable. a reouest for an extension should be obtained from the
federal aqencv. Also. the Municioalitv should establish monitorinE
orocedures to assure the accuracv of accountinE records and a

correct comoletion of the closing reoorts. The oroEram accountant
must establish adeouate communication channels with the Finance
Deoartment in older to obtain documental evidence related to cash

receiot and disbursemenG in a dailv manner. in order to be Dosted

in the cash reEister maintained bv the oroqram accountant. This

control will assure that accountinE records are uDdated atthe end of
each month in order to preoare accurate monthlv reoorts to the
oass-throuEh aEencv. ln addition. the accountant must assure that
the cash redister and the Eeneral ledEer are dulv reconciliated and
iournal entries oosted in the Eeneral led(er are dulv documented
and exotained. The proEram Director must evaluate the
imolementation of a comouter accountinE software to maintain the
orodram books due to a volume of transactions manual books are
considered inefflcient.

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the flnding for
the currentyear. Finding Reference 1GO5. _

07-o2 93-600 ManaEement should follow cash management svstem orocedures
develooed bv it in order to assure that funds reouested are
disbursed as reouired bv the re{ulation

Audit flnding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years

since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse.
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is

not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a flnal decision
respect to the flnding.
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SUMMARY SCI{EDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Orignal CFDA No. Cunent Stahrs of P,iorYsa. Audlt FederalAwad Flndlngs - Part lllFlndlnEs
Finding
Number

(As requiGd by oMB CircularA133)

07-o3 93.600 The reouired reports should be orepared including all the reouired
information and submitted in a timelv manner. lf the deadline is not
achievable. a reouest for an extension should be obtained from the
federal aqencv. Also. the Municioalltv should establish monitorinE
orocedures to assure the accuracv of accountinE records and a
correct comoletion of the closinq reoorts. The oroqram accountant
must establish adeouate communication channels vvith the Finance
Deoartment in order to obtain documental evidence related to cash
receiot and disbursements in a dailv manner. in order to be oosted
in the cash reEister maintained bv the oroEram accountant. This
control will assure that accountinE records are uodated at the end of
each month in order to oreoare accurate monthlv reoorts to the
pass-throuEh aEencv. ln addition. the accountant must assure that
the cash register and the Eeneral ledper are dulv reconciliated and
iournal entries oosted in the peneral ledEer are dulv documented
and explained. The orogram Director must evaluate the
imolementation of a comouter accounting software to maintain the
oro4ram books due to a volume of transactions manual books are
considered ineff icient.

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years
since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse.
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is
not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision
respect to the findin
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